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Financial Highlights Bl =

OPERATING RESULTS %4&

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31HILLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

20124 PYRE:S 201045 20094 20085

HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$’000

FHx THx FHx THET THx

Turnover g 1,232,287 372,726 328,120 367,056 699,317

Operating profit (loss) feesr (B18) 96,443  (224,349) 52,942 66,171 97,887

Finance costs AR A (25,930) (10,524) (779) (586) (16,405)

Profit (loss) before taxation BRADER (E18) 70,513 (234,873) 52,163 65,585 81,482

Income tax (expense) credit TR (X ) #e (51,866) 3,417 (12,947) (12,615) (20,563)

Profit (loss) for the year REERF (FE) 18,647  (231,456) 39,216 52,970 60,919
Profit (loss) attributable to: TH AT

A (E18) -

Owners of the Company VAN 2PN 18,660 (229,858) 36,610 53,010 61,095

Non-controlling interests S (13) (1,598) 2,606 (40) (176)

18,647  (231,456) 39,216 52,970 60,919

FINANCIAL POSITION Ef#%:R %

As at 31 December

M12A318

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

2012%F 20114 20104 20094 2008F

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

TET FTERT FET FTET FET

Total assets BEE 1,812,470 1,945,034 871,860 725,102 794,921
Total liabilities wag (755,183)  (908,167)  (164,845)  (74,912)  (197,549)
1,057,287 1,036,867 707,015 650,190 597,372

Equity attributable to owners ~ ZAAFIHA A

of the Company FEEHES 1,055,273 1,034,844 703,601 649,382 596,959
Non-controlling interests JEP AR RE R 2,014 2,023 3,414 808 413
1,057,287 1,036,867 707,015 650,190 597,372

Note:

Msr © A& B E £20124F 2011512 731
AIEMEFENGEAEEMASEER
20124 R2011E12A31B M B E &
BERMEAEAFRANESE7TIAN

AEBEKEZSEAPHRE -

The consolidated results of the Group for the two years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 have been extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as
set out on pages 68 to 71 of the Annual Report.

2 CGN Mining Company Limited P EZIEE B[R A7)
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Chairman’s Statement = EREE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of CGN Mining
Company Limited (“CGN Mining” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | hereby
announce the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

In 2012, the natural uranium trading business begins to bring new
source of revenue and significant growth to the Group, leading to
a net profit record.

During the reporting period, the Group has achieved the following
results:

° Turnover of HK$1,232 million (2011: HK$373 million);

o Gross profit margin after deducting selling and distribution
expenses being 14% (2011: 3%); and

° Profit attributable to owners of the Company/turnover being
2% (2011: -62%).

The Group has repositioned itself as a platform for uranium
resources investment and trading, leveraging on the background
and expertise of China Uranium Development Company Limited
in the uranium industry to pursue business development and
investment opportunities, which in turn diversifies the business
model of the Group.

The natural uranium trading is a new business to the Group.
At the same time, the Group is still carrying out its existing
pharmaceutical and food business. To enhance competitiveness,
the Group will effectively allocate additional resources (such as
human resources) for the business development, thus ensuring a
smooth operation of this new business sector.

6 CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

RAABRRFEZBEERRAR ([FHE
BREE] SR [ARQA]) EREWE QA
(B Ir&EE8) Exg ((E5g)) =
MmAEBEHZ2012F12A31HIEFEZ

N
RECEAEE -

20129 - RAMEBE HEBHRBE /LS
BT E A WA TR R ERENEE
FIRIT F A BRI RS o

BEHRN  AEETENE T TEE -

. BT A1 032F &6 T (2011
& 373EEBIT)

. HBRHEERDHEFAXBENER
14% (20114 : 3%) : &

. RAFIHER ARG & 5
LEE 2% (20114F © -62%)
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EZESZREXEARE FAhEBERR
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RAME S RAKBEZHEBRR -
B AEEREREERRRMER -
BNBAKEEARZBEF N - AKEHK
B EEZER (MMANEIR) A%
RAAME FEF - BERIENZHR
BT 5 IRSE 1F -



Chairman’s Statement FEHREE

The influence of the nuclear crisis in Fukushima city of Japan
is diminishing, at the same time, there is a scarcity of power
generating resources (such as oil and coal) without desirable and
sufficient substitutes. Given that the expected strong demand for
energy in the long term for development of the PRC economy, we
anticipate that the nuclear power industry, and in turn the uranium
or related industry in the PRC would be developing persistently
in the future. The Group continues to develop the scale of natural
uranium trading business and proactively seek investment
opportunities in uranium resources, accelerating the momentum
for the Group’s revenue.

The profitability of the Group, affected by the keen competition
in the pharmaceutical industry, continues to decline. In the
foreseeable future, consolidation is expected to take place in the
markets of food, pharmaceuticals and properties in the PRC, with
substantial pressure on the operating environment. The Group
will reinforce our risk management and trim down the existing
pharmaceutical and food business.

We endeavour to lay good foundation, endlessly pursue
breakthrough, preserve sustainable growth and create value for
the shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the heartfelt
gratitude to our business partners, customers and shareholders
for their relentless support. | would also like to thank all staff for
their dedicated efforts over the past year.

Yu Zhiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis &% @1 R 247

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year 2012, the consolidated turnover of the Group increased
by approximately 230% year-on-year from HK$373 million to
approximately HK$1,232 million as compared to the previous year.
The profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$19 million (2011: loss of HK$230 million).

The significant increase in the turnover of the Company for
the year ended 2012 as compared with the previous year was
primarily attributable to the solid stream of income generated
from the new natural uranium trading business which recorded
approximately HK$1,167 million (2011: nil). We have also received
an one-off proceeds gained from the disposal of a commercial
property at Lippo Centre, Queensway, Hong Kong in December
2012. As a result, the Group has recorded a substantial increase
in profits as compared to the year 2011.

As a whole, the profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$19 million (2011: loss of HK$230
million). Basic earnings per share was HK$0.56 cents (2011:
loss per share HK$10.31 cents). The Group’s financial position
remained strong during the year, with approximately HK$605
million (2011: HK$1,264 million) of bank balance and cash as
at 31 December 2012. Gearing ratio (total borrowings/equity
attributable to owners of the Company, net of intangible assets
and goodwill) as at 31 December 2012 was 47% (2011: 45%).

Trading of Natural Uranium

Over the year, the directors of the Company have been exploring
suitable business opportunities to broaden the revenue base and
to diversify the business scope of the Company.

8 CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

EHXOE
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Management Discussion and Analysis S B i & 247

The Group has commenced the trading of natural uranium in 2011
and achieved a profit record in 2012. Uranium has the largest
atomic number of natural element. In the crust, uranium exists in
uranium minerals, isomorphic form and absorbed state. Uranium
is chemically active, so no pure uranium exists in nature. In
general, uranium ore is mined and then uranium is extracted from
the ore to form uranium-rich intermediate products, often referred
to as uranium concentrates, which is further purified into uranium
oxides. The international market usually uses triuraniumoctaoxide
(UsQOs) as the standard product in the trading of natural uranium.

The Group has recorded HK$1,167 million turnover in trading of
natural uranium during the reporting period.

Pharmaceutical and Food Industry
Product Sales

During the year, the Group’s turnover from sales of pharmaceutical
and food product amounted to approximately HK$58 million, a
significant decrease of approximately 84% as compared with the
sales of approximately HK$367 million last year.

“Osteoform Calcium Food”, a food product of the Group

The Group’s food product “Osteoform Calcium Food” consists
of multiple minerals and vitamins. Its nutrition facilitates the
absorption of calcium by human body, thus helping the formation
of bone matrix and the maintenance of bone density. Turnover
in the year 2012 amounted to HK$0.1 million, representing a
decrease of 100% as compared with last year.

With reference to the Company’s announcements dated 14 June
2012, 12 March 2012, 8 December 2011 and 4 August 2011 and
the 2011 annual report, the Group discovered that the sales of
Osteoform Calcium Food (or otherwise called Osteoform Food
Product in the above announcements) has decreased substantially
since June 2011. Given that the food hygiene licence obtained by
the Group has expired on 25 November 2011 and the difficulties of
renewing the food hygiene licence in view of the changes of food
hygiene rules and regulations in PRC, the Group had stopped the
production of Osteoform Calcium Food in 2011.

REBR20MFHRBRAME HEBKIL
FE2012F RIS AFCE - 2 B ARTP
RFFHEEARHTTE - HARPHHMEE
DAY ~ 20 E B & AR BT R R A 7 3
FHE - ARMANCREEEE - B
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R SRR T ERK S MEEHF
FEM BEEAMCBREY YK
WE— R MIKHWELY - BEE
miGEERN\EL=ZHESRAME S
MRREEm °

AEBRARERANESF11.67TERETH
RAME HEER -

BERNRERER

EmiEs
FRNAEBEFMRRBEELERE
#58E BB L BMEFHI67EB LY
8 K@ TBE4984% °

[# B Rm | — AEER

AEENRG [ENIERR] S2EEY
BERgrs HEER{EARREAR
HIEM MU - e R B EE LN - 4
BEERE - 2012FNEEFR01EE
BIT AT TE100% ©

iR # &N~ 7 A H /20126675148 -
201243 A 128 ~ 2011412 A8H %2011
FHA4HM R E A0 EFR » ANE
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RENRM) WIHEB2011F6 H ARE
WARIETK o SR AEEENNR YA E
F PR E R2011F11 258 @m @ m AR
PRI BB ERBRANNE  2RZ
RYEERRBER THORE - HAKED
20 FRIEEELNITRM -
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“Osteoform Vitamins with minerals dispersible tablet”, a compound
vitamin and minerals product

“Osteoform Vitamins with minerals dispersible tablet”, a compound
product for the prevention and treatment of disease caused by
lack of vitamins and minerals, was launched onto the market
during the second quarter of the year 2009. Turnover in the year
2012 was around HK$0.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 96% as compared with last year.

Madaus products

Regarding the trading of overseas agency products of Madaus
GmbH, Germany which include Legalon (Silymarin) and Uralyt-U
(Potassium Sodium Hydrogen Citrate Granules), etc., the Group
has recorded turnover of approximately HK$9.9 million in the year
2012, representing a decrease of approximately 89% as compared
with last year. In 2012, the Group was selling its remaining stock
of Madaus products. When the existing Madaus products are all
sold out, the Group will stop selling Madaus products.

“Taurolite®”, a prescription medication capable of dissolving the
cholesterol stones formed in the gallbladder and bile-duct

“Taurolite®” Tauroursodeoxycholic acid capsule cures and
prevents liver diseases such as cholelithiasis and chronic bile
stasis. In the case of cholesterol stone smaller than 2cm, sufferers
may simply dissolve it by taking the medication without having
to undergo operation. “Taurolite®” has been launched onto the
market during the second half of the year 2009. Turnover for the
year 2012 was approximately HK$20.1 million, representing a
growth of approximately 6% as compared with last year.

The Production Base in Wuhan, Hubei Province, the PRC

During the year, our major production included a drug “Glimepiride
orally disintegrating tablets” — medication for diabetes, “Vital
Fast” — a slow release flu medication and “Opin” — a gynaecology
biological drug.

10  CGN Mining Company Limited ffEXIE2E B R A A
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Sichuan Hengtai Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Sichuan Hengtai Pharmaceutical Company Limited is the major
sales arm of the Group. During the year, major sales products
included “Taurolite®”.

Property Investment
Leased investment property

Property investment segment includes leased properties situated
in Sichuan, the PRC. During the year 2012, the property investment
business contributed approximately HK$7.0 million (2011: HK$5.5
million) rental income to the Group. The increase was mainly due
to the improvement of occupancy rate and rental level.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Board is of the view that the markets of food, pharmaceuticals
and properties of the PRC will be consolidated in the foreseeable
future given the existing pressure in the operating environment.
The Group will strengthen risk management and scale down the
existing pharmaceutical and food business. At the same time, the
Group continues to develop the scale of natural uranium trading
and proactively identify uranium resource investment opportunities
to preserve the sustainable growth and long-term value of the
shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had in issue
3,332,586,993 ordinary shares (31 December 2011: 3,332,586,993
ordinary shares). During the year 2012, the Company had not
issued any new shares (2011: 1,781,530,000). The market
capitalisation of the Company as at 31 December 2012
was approximately HK$2,866 million (31 December 2011:
approximately HK$3,199 million).

MIMERBHEERAF
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any outstanding
bank borrowing (31 December 2011: nil). Bank balances and
cash amounted to approximately HK$605 million (31 December
2011: HK$1,264 million), including pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$1 million (31 December 2011: HK$1 million).
The decrease was mainly due to the advance of a revolving loan
to a shareholder during the year.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has not obtained banking
facilities from any banks (31 December 2011: HK$88 million). The
average cost of financing was around 6% per annum in 2011. The
Group has maintained sufficient financial resources for business
operation purpose. The Group has no seasonality of borrowing
requirement.

The Group adopts conservative funding and treasury policies and
objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
financed its operations mainly by internally generated resources.

As at 31 December 2012, in relation to cash and bank balances
amounting to approximately HK$605 million (31 December 2011:
HK$1,264 million), approximately 80% (2011: 93%) of which was
denominated in HK$, approximately 5% (2011: 7%) of which was
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and approximately 15% (2011:
0%) of which was denominated in USD.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk and currency policy

The sales of the Group were mainly denominated in USD and
RMB (2011: RMB). Purchases were mainly denominated in USD
and RMB (2011: USD, RMB and Euro). Operating expenditures
including administrative expenses and selling and distribution
expenses, were primarily denominated in HK$ and RMB.

12 CGN Mining Company Limited ffEZIEZE B R A A
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In 2012, the Group did not enter into any forward contracts,
interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives for
hedging purpose. The Group did not experience any material
difficulty or negative effect on its operations or liquidity as a result
of fluctuations on currency exchange rates.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2011: nil).

Key financial figures and ratios
Income statement item:

Gross profit margin: During the reporting period, the Group has
strategically scaled down its pharmaceutical and food business.
The natural uranium trading business has made a significant
boost in total turnover. The average gross profit margin for the
year 2012 decreased to approximately 16% when compared to
approximately 29% for the corresponding period in 2011, due to
the lower gross profit margin of the natural uranium business as
compared with the pharmaceutical and food business.

Other operating income: The other operating income for the year
2012 was approximately HK$54 million, which had been increased
by approximately HK$22 million as compared to the year 2011.
It was mainly attributable to the increase of bank interest income
and gain on disposal of a property during the year.

Selling and distribution expenses: The Group identified high
selling and distribution expenses as business risk and aimed to
tighten the outflow. The ratio of selling and distribution expenses
to turnover significantly decreased from 26% for the year 2011 to
3% for the year 2012.
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Administrative expenses: Although the Group focused on
tightening its budgetary control to cut down administrative costs,
the administrative expenses increased from approximately HK$93
million to HK$130 million as the Group made efforts to explore
new business opportunities during the year.

Finance costs: The finance costs for the year 2012 mainly arose

from the convertible bond issued and allotted in the second half of
year 2011.

THRY  BESEEHEHEREE
AETKITER A - THHASXESEERF
NBHRBEFEEmRANBEEET £
FZE1MEAETT -

BMEKK  2012FNBEXATER
2011 T HF T RACEN A RRES
mEL -

Year 2012 Year 2011
20124 20114
Income statement item: WHRER -
Turnover (HK$’ million) EXRE (BB 1,232 373
Gross profit margin FEFIR 16% 29%
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HAX
(HK$’ million) (B&ET) 35 98
Gross profit margin after deducting MR HE R HAS A
selling and distribution expenses FEFIE 14% 3%
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of ZAN/NCIE ZE DN bl
the Company/Turnover (B18) H S FEL X 2% (62%)
Earning (loss) before interest, tax, FEAE - Bie - TEM
depreciation and amortisation BIERI AR (BE)
(“EBITDA” “(LBITDA)") (HK$’ million) ([EBITDAJT(LBITDA)])
(B&@%T) 103 (214)
EBITDA (LBITDA)/Turnover EBITDA (LBITDA)E2
L 8% (57%)
Statement of financial position item: B ARRFTIER

Gearing ratio: The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2012 (total
borrowings/equity attributable to owners of the Company, net of
intangible assets and goodwill) was 47%, as compared to the
gearing ratio of 45% as at 31 December 2011.
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The Group offers shorter credit terms to the customer of the
new natural uranium trading business. However, as the Group
generated more revenue in the fourth quarter of year 2012, the
average trade receivable turnover days were only slightly reduced
to approximately 45 days. Since the Group does not generally
hold any inventory for the natural uranium trading business, the
inventory turnover days decreased to approximately 5 days.

BgMRRRIER -
ABRESNaE

Statement of financial position item:
Liability component of convertible bonds

Bank balances and cash WRITEF RS
Net tangible assets BWAETHAE
Gearing ratio BREELR

Average trade receivable turnover days
Average inventory turnover days FEIRE — T
(excluding goods in transit)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately HK$1
million in bank balances and cash that were pledged as collateral
to a bank. For the year 2012, return on equity was on average 2%
(2011: -22%).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 180 employees. 122 of
these employees were located in China and 58 in Hong Kong and
Macau.

The policies of employee remuneration, bonus, share option
scheme and training are commensurate with performance and
comparable to market rate. The Group encourages employees to
participate in external training programs to develop themselves
on a continuous basis, so as to improve staff quality to meet future
challenges and gain a competitive edge. Total staff costs for the
year 2012 amounted to approximately HK$52 million.

FEYSRFIAE — ¥

(T RREEEREM)

AEBRFORAMEZEBEL KT
RENEEH - A ARAEER
2012FFAZTEHRBRBEERE B
AR AEY 19 A B R R BN T R £ 4945
R HARARERBEHRA—RLER
ARAMESEBREEAFE  FEE
HTREELERK -

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
120124 120114
12A31H 12H31H
HK$’ million HK$’ million
BE#ER BEER
493 467

605 1,264

1,055 1,035

47% 45%

45 days 46 days
45K 46K

5 days 74 days

5X 74K

20126 12A31H - SEHHF1EEH
TRITEF LB D ER TFTRITER/E
Hin o M20125 8 - RRESEHEF
HR2% (20114F : -22%) °

EBEEHR

MR2012412A31H - £E L F180% B
B ZEREDT 1228 EHNTE 58
ZENEB MR -

SEETIMHH - T4 BRETER
BB 5 e E R IR B AT 5
KA - EEBENRB BB MINRE P
MBEEFIRERERR  URERSET
=Y DESEkE - BAMAEEAEE
MTISHEEE - 20126 ENE TRA
BEHHIS2B BB ©
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman

Mr. Yu Zhiping, aged 49, is the chairman and non-executive
director of the Company. He was appointed a non-executive
director on 18 August 2011. Mr. Yu is a senior engineer. He
joined CGN Group in 1989, and is currently a general manager
of CGNPC Uranium Resources Co., Ltd. Prior to that, he was
the secretary general of the Financial and Economic Affairs
Committee, director of the research centre, and a general manager
of the strategic planning department of China Guangdong Nuclear
Power Holding Corporation (“CGNPC”, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company, collectively with its subsidiaries
referred to as “CGN Group”). Mr. Yu has over 23 years of
experience in corporate management and uranium exploration.
Mr. Yu is currently the chairman of Swakop Uranium (Pty) Limited
and a non-executive director of North River Resources plc (listed
on AIM of the London Stock Exchange, ticker: NRRP). Mr. Yu
graduated with a bachelor degree in Engineering Mechanics from
Huazhong University of Science & Technology in 1985.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. He Zuyuan, aged 47, is the chief executive officer, executive
director and authorised representative of the Company. He was
appointed an executive director on 18 August 2011. He joined
CGN Group in 2007 and is currently a deputy general manager
of CGNPC Uranium Resources Co., Ltd. He had served as a CFO
of CGNPC Uranium Resources Co., Ltd. Mr. He has over 21 years
of experience in uranium exploration and financial management.
He has worked for Nanjing Zhongda Group for 3 years, serving as
its Chief Financial Officer and vice president. Mr. He is currently
a director of Beijing Sino-Kaz Uranium Resources Investment
Company Limited, Energy Metals Ltd. (a listed company in
Australia, stock code: EME), China Uranium Development
Company Limited, North River Resources plc (listed on AIM of the
London Stock Exchange, ticker: NRRP), Taurus Mineral Limited
and Semizbay-U LLP. He was once a director of Kalahari Minerals
and Extract Resources Pty Ltd.. Mr. He graduated with a bachelor
degree from East China Institute of Geology in 1988 and was also
awarded an MBA degree from Tsinghua University.
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Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

Mr. Li Xianli, aged 39, joined the Company as chief financial
officer on February 2012 and was appointed an executive director
on 5 July 2012. Mr Li is currently a non-practicing member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated
from the Central University of Finance and Economics with a
bachelor degree in economics in 1996. From 1996 to 2000, Mr.
Li was involved in the financial management work in the finance
department of CGNPC. From April 2010 to February 2012, Mr. Li
was the executive director of Silver Grant International Industries
Limited (“Silver Grant”) (Stock code:171), whose shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, during which,
he was also the Deputy General Manager of Silver Grant from
September 2010 to January 2012. Mr. Li has over 10 years of
experience in accounting and financial management.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Qiyan, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive
director on 18 August 2011. He is a senior engineer and holder
of doctorate degree in Business Administration. Mr. Wei joined
CGN Group in 1991, and is currently a deputy general manager of
CGNPC Uranium Resources Co., Ltd. Prior to that, he served as
the head of the planning and contract department and the contract
manager of the engineering department in Taishan Nuclear Power
Joint Venture Co., Ltd. Mr. Wei has over 20 years of experience
in nuclear fuel, nuclear power plant technology, contract
management and corporate management. Mr. Wei graduated with
a master degree in engineering from Tsinghua University in 1991
and received a doctorate degree in Business Administration from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology in 2007.
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ZH YL BHF395% 0 R20129F2A8
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Jin Yunfei, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive
director on 5 July 2012. She joined CGNPC Uranium Resources
Co., Ltd in 2011 and acted as a CFO until now. Prior to that, Ms.
Jin served as an official supervisor in the board of supervisors of
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council (SASAC) and as an official supervisor in the
board of supervisors of large state-owned enterprises. Ms. Jin
has over 18 years’ experience in financial management in China.
Currently, Ms. Jin is the Chairman of Beijing Sino-Kaz Uranium
Resources Investment Company Limited and China Uranium
Development Company Limited. She is also a director of CGNPC
Uranium Resource Xinjiang Co., Ltd, CGNPC Uranium Resource
Guangdong Co., Ltd, CGNPC URC Logistics (Beijing) Co., Ltd,
“Semizbai-U” Limited Liability Partnership and a non-executive
director of Energy Metals Ltd. (a listed company in Australia, stock
code: EME). In 1989, Ms. Jin graduated with a bachelor degree
in economics (major in Materials Economics Management) from
Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics. In 2004, Ms. Jin was
awarded a master degree in management (major in Accountancy)
from Renmin University of China.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Jianming, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive
director on 5 July 2012. He joined the Group since its
establishment in April 1998. Prior to Mr. Huang’s resignation
in November 2009, Mr. Huang was one of the founders of
the Group, vice-chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, who was responsible for planning and deciding the
business and production strategy and daily operation. During
the period from April 2004 to November 2009, Mr. Huang was an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Huang graduated from
Luzhou Chemical Engineering College in 1981. Mr. Huang was
employed as a management staff of Sichuan Chengdu Fourth
Pharmaceutical Plant for 11 years since 1982 and accumulated
over 22 years of management experience in the pharmaceutical
industry.

18  CGN Mining Company Limited ffEXIEZE B R A A

FUITES

WERL L HF458% 0 R20126F7H
SHEZARIFEHNITESE - H20114F
MAFEZBHEERAERAR - B
BEAMES - ETBEBZ AT Tzt
CRTEBREEEEEBEREZE
e ((HEZ) ESSrIRAERES
REBERACEEZTSERES - HiL
THABBISF PR EERLS -
BERl T AL RPREaERIEE
ERAFEEFRETEMEZRBERA
REER -BAATEZMENBLER
BRAF - FEZBEERBERAA
PEZBENRE LR BRAR - #
KREFFHERETERLEZEER
Energy Metals Ltd. CBM ETMAR] » B
MR EME) ZIFERITES - it
FRN1989F E X MNPRA I K St - BE
BEt (YEKLESERE) 12004
FRABRARKZESEEZEELT (F5F
BHX) o

FHUITES

BEEP L L IR F495 0 R20124F7
ASHEZERIFNITES - HIEARE
B R1998F4A KR pNEE - B AR
2009F 11 A BEF AR BBl B A E Al 9t
AZ—  ARRBEFEFRERHITE
BEARAZEBREKE - £EHRE KA
BB o f£2004F 4 F E2009F 11 A B
M BAERARBINTES - BLAE
P1981EZENEME TERIER - 5
19824F #E » J A AU & K ER T 5 1
BB T EREEIIF  ShEREE
(TR EREBB2FLR -



Directors’ Profile & &4)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Ling Bing, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 18 August 2011. He is a qualified
lawyer in the PRC, and is currently a Chinese Law professor of
the University of Sydney, Australia. Mr. Ling is a member of the
Executive Council of the Chinese Society of International Law,
a consultant to the research centre of law of the sea of School
of Law of Tsinghua University, a consultant to the Centre of
Comparative Law and Transnational Law of Tilburg University
in the Netherlands and an external consultant for both the LLM
Program in Chinese Law of the Faculty of Law of the University
of Hong Kong and the LLM Program of the Open University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Ling was a professor and associate dean of the
Faculty of Law of the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a visiting
professor of the Law School of Tsinghua University, an adjunct
professor of School of Law of Fudan University, a visiting professor
of Law School of the University of Michigan, and a tutor of the
Institute of International Law of Peking University. Mr. Ling has over
21 years of experience in Business Law teaching and research.
Mr. Ling has an LLB degree from Peking University and an LLM
degree from the University of Michigan.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Qiu Xianhong, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 18 August 2011. He is a Certified
Public Accountant in the PRC and a senior accountant. Mr. Qiu
is a partner of Beijing QQCPA Accounting Firm. Mr. Qiu is also a
finance consultant to China Institute of Strategy and Management.
Mr. Qiu was the deputy head of the financial department and
asset management department of China National Packaging
Corporation, and the deputy director of the Financial Department
of China Patent Bureau. Mr. Qiu has over 27 years of experience
in financial accounting, financial management and auditing. Mr.
Qiu graduated with a bachelor degree in financial accounting from
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Jinsong, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 18 August 2011. He is an associate
professor of Corporate Management of the School of Economics
and Management of Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics, joined the Company in August 2011. Mr. Huang
has worked as the chief consultant to Beijing Zhengxinchuangye
Investment Consulting Company Limited for 3 years. Mr. Huang
has over 12 years of experience in corporate reorganization and
development strategy. Mr. Huang has a master degree and a
doctorate degree in Management, both of which are from Tsinghua
University.
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The Company is committed to establishing and fulfilling a good
corporate governance practice and procedure, by ensuring
a quality Board, sound internal control, and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders. We believe that good corporate
governance practice can earn the trust of shareholders as well as
other stakeholders, and most importantly, preserve the long-term
interests of the shareholders.

To allow the shareholders to have an informed view, we set out
below a summative report describing what we have done to
follow the corporate governance practice for the year ended 31
December 2012.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance policy follows the principles
and practice stated in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report) (the
“Corporate Governance Code”).

In the opinion of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) during the period from 1
January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and the Corporate Governance
Code (effective from 1 April 2012) during the period from 1 April
2012 to 31 December 2012, except for the deviation from the
code provision disclosed below.

Code provisions A.2.7: The chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the non-executive Directors without the executive
directors present.

According to paragraph | (d) of Appendix 14, attendance at board
or committee meetings by an alternate director should not be
counted as attendance by the director himself. On 15 November
2012, Mr. Yu Zhiping, the Company’s Chairman, has appointed
Mr. Wei Qiyan to be his alternate to attend a meeting with other
non-executive Directors, without the presence of executive
Directors. The attendance of Mr. Wei Qiyan should not be counted
as attendance by Mr. Yu Zhiping himself. Mr. Yu Zhiping has
communicated with other non-executive Directors on a regular
basis.
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Code provision A.6.7: Independent non-executive Directors
and other non-executive Directors, as equal Board members,
should give the Board and any committees on which they serve
the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.
They should also attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

Mr. Yu Zhiping, Mr. Wei Qiyan, Mr. Chen Zhiyu (resigned on 5
July 2012), all being non-executive Directors, and Mr. Ling Bing,
Mr. Qiu Xianhong and Mr. Huang Jinsong, all being independent
non-executive Directors, were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) held on 16 May 2012 due to
other business engagement.

Code provision E.1.2: The chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting. He should also invite the chairmen
of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees
(as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed
delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting. The chairman of the
independent board committee (if any) should also be available to
answer questions at any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval. An issuer's management should ensure
the external auditor attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

Mr. Yu Zhiping, the Chairman of the Board and chairman of the
Nomination Committee did not attend the AGM due to other
business engagements. Mr. Yu Zhiping has appointed Mr. He
Zuyuan, Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Nomination
Committee, to attend the AGM and answer questions raised by
shareholders.

Mr. Qiu Xianhong, chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee did not attend the AGM and was not
able to delegate other members of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee to attend the AGM as all of them have
other business engagements.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the principle
standards of securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiries made by the Company that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role

As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprises 2 Executive
Directors (“EDs”), 4 Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and 3
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) with the following
membership information on which each Director serves:

EENESFXS

ARBERNIFEEST R LR RS0
B EMARESETESXHNEL
SR (MEESTRL) BSARRESFETE
HFRHPMEBFEE - KARB AR EFN
HARSEH 2REEHR RENH
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EEg
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R2012F12A318 » EEE H2R 1T
EF([TEE]) 4BFATES
([FEMITESR]) RIEBUFERITES
(BIIEMITEE]) AKX - TREIF
EENESEESTEENNEEHER :

Remuneration Audit Nomination

Committee
REZES

Committee
BEREES

Committee

FHEEE

Director

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. He Zuyuan Ao E M M
(Chief Executive Officer) (BEHTE)
Mr. Li Xianli E3AVE e M
(appointed on 5 July 2012) (R2012F7 A5 B EZT)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yu Zhiping (Chairman) SEFEE (TE) C
Mr. Wei Qiyan BMEERE M
Ms. Jin Yunfei ERL L
(appointed on 5 July 2012) (R2012F7 5B EZT)
Mr. Huang Jianming =HERLE

(appointed on 5 July 2012) (20127 A5 BHERT)

Independent Non-executive Directors BV #HTES
Mr. Ling Bing EESE M M M
Mr. Qiu Xianhong RSt C C M
Mr. Huang Jinsong B M M
Notes: P EE -
C — Chairman of the relevant Board committees C —EHEEZEEMERE
M — Member of the relevant Board committees M -~ BREEZEENNE

22 CGN Mining Company Limited P EZIEE B[R A7)



Corporate Governance Report ™2 &4 &

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years in accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association
and the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board complies with Rules 3.10(1) & (2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules in relation to the appointment of at least three INEDs,
which represents at least one-third of the Board, and one of the
INED has appropriate professional qualifications on accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Each of the INED has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

The Board members does not have any financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

In accordance with Paragraph C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Directors have conducted a review of the overall
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and
concluded that all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management are effective.
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The Board takes charge of the corporate governance function and
is responsible for the tasks stated tasks stated below. The Board
may delegate the responsibilities to other committees as it thinks

fit:

(a)

24

to review the Company’s compliance policies, programs
and procedures and make recommendations as necessary
from time to time;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
to ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

to oversee the implementation of any code of conduct
and/or business ethics of the Company to ensure the
Company’s compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations, including but not limited to the Listing Rules
and the Takeovers Code;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report;

to form any committee(s) or panels, appoint members
thereto, delegate at any time and from time to time to any
person or committee(s) or panel(s), any of its powers and
functions conferred on it, review and approve the reports of
the committees(s) and panel(s), review their performance
and revise their composition and terms of reference as
appropriate;

to oversee all matters and to formulate policies in
relation to the Company’s internal control, succession
plans, remuneration and compensation for Directors and
employees, risk management, corporate governance
and corporate social responsibility, and to supervise the
Company’s management to implement such policies;

investigate any significant instances of non-compliance or
potential non-compliance of the Company; and

to do any such things to enable the Board to discharge its
obligations and responsibilities.
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Major work done by the Board as regards the corporate
governance function during 2012 includes:

10.

11.

reviewing compliance with certain amendments to the
Listing Rules effective on 1 April 2012;

reviewing and approving the proposed amendments to
memorandum of association and articles of association;

approving the establishment of nomination committee and
the terms of reference for the nomination committee;

reviewing and approving the shareholders communication
policy;

approving the revised terms of reference for the
remuneration committee;

approving the revised terms of reference for the audit
committee;

approving the procedure for shareholders to nominate
directors;

reviewing and approving the board authority charter;

reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system;

reviewing the directors’ compliance with the Model Code;
and

reviewing and agreeing on the independence of non-
executive Directors.
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Change of directorship and composition of committees

Re-designation of Directors:

(1)

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei was re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director, with effect from 15 March
2012;

Mr. Qiu Xianhong was re-designated from a member
of the Remuneration Committee to the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and Mr. He Zuyuan was
re-designated from the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee to a member of the Remuneration Committee,
with effect from 15 March 2012;

Resignation of Directors:

(1)

Mr. Li Zhengguang has resigned as an executive Director
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, with effect
from 5 July 2012;

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei has resigned as an executive Director,
with effect from 5 July 2012; and

Mr. Chen Zhiyu has resigned as a non-executive Director,
with effect from 5 July 2012.

Appointment of Directors:

(1)

2

3)

Mr. Li Xianli has been appointed as an executive Director
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, with effect
from 5 July 2012;

Mr. Huang Jianming has been appointed as a
non-executive Director, with effect from 5 July 2012; and

Ms. Jin Yunfei has been appointed as a non-executive
Director, with effect from 5 July 2012.

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, to the knowledge of the

Company, there is no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors, including the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer, are required to retire from office by rotation once every
three years and are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Corporate Governance Code.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors, who have served the longest on the
Board, must retire and be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting.

Any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-Executive
Director who has served the Company’s Board for more than 9
years will be subject to separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders.

Directors appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the “Corporate Governance Code”
(with effective from 1 April 2012), Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the period
starting from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of attending training seminar or reading material
on legal and regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

EECEERERE

MEEE BRIFEREERTE B
BREARANARERMAREEE
ATAMRES=FmRER X I
ARBERBFEAEG EEBRRER -

REAARANATERMAE08H - R
EFLEABBAN=H 2 —EFARR
SR RS AFARTRTEREE
FAELEREE -

HERARBREFSRGEBIFNIEL
FRTERELEATBRNEE B4R
AR AL HYR R Z A B -

EZTEBRREZROESTNEHER
BEEHEZERNT - ERRAER
I BRBERREIE -

ESWEII

BAE [ EEATA sFRIFEA6.506 (B
2012F4 A1HBAERN)  EFELEE
BEOEEHERIG  UBEREHHA
HEFTD - ERABRESEARAR
HEONBETAESSELRER - B
201244 1B E2012412 A31 B i/
FTEZESECEMBLFEIERERRENR
ARREBNEESTHBERBERAN
EERETEN  2HBEMNIFELES
HBREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 —ZE——4&%% 27



Corporate Governance Report 1~ £ &4 &

ARFIRERBE2012F4 H1H 220124
12A31HEFMES 25 -

A summary of training taken by the Directors since 1 April 2012
up to 31 December 2012 is set out as follows:

Type of training

Directors EIEE
Executive Directors HITES
He Zuyuan (Chief Executive Officer) e (BE/EH7TE) a
Li Xianli E3i7hva a
Li Zhengguang ZIER b
Zheng Xiaowei BREERT b
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Yu Zhiping (Chairman) REF (/) b
Wei Qiyan MEE a
Jin Yunfei FER b
Huang Jianming el a
Chen Zhiyu PREF b
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ling Bing %K
Qiu Xianhong JiSops
Huang Jinsong =
Notes: MizE -
a: attending training seminar a i 1 8
b: reading seminar materials on legal and regulatory subjects b: ) 7 B A 1 ) 3R 75 ok £ 2B SR Rk A e

relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and

obligations
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the Company is Mr. Yu Zhiping and the chief
executive officer of the Company is Mr. He Zuyuan. The Company
has complied with code provision A.2.1 and J 9(b) which stipulate
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
functioning properly, with good corporate governance practices
and procedures, whereas the chief executive officer, supported by
the executive Directors and management team, is responsible for
managing the Group’s businesses, including the implementation
of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are as follows:

IEREEATE

RABERAREFTLRE  KAREE
HMITEBMBTLEE - ARARICETT
AMESTEA 2. 1ERJ 9(b)IE + &R ETHA
IERERATENACETHA T
R —REAAET - TFEEEHERE
EEERIMNGEEREBARERF TZ
EHMBETRE MEaFRTEEBER
WITESREBEREAIERT  GUE
BEENER  BEERTESSRAD
TERIERIEN o

FHTES
HRTEFRSINFRNT -

Term of Appointment

Non-Executive Directors FEHTES ZEEH
Yu Zhiping (Chairman) REF (FF) 18 August 2011 — 17 August 2013
2011485188 — 201348 A17H
Wei Qiyan BEZE 18 August 2011 — 17 August 2013
201148 518H — 201348 A17H
Jin Yunfei FrER 5 July 2012 — 4 July 2014
(appointed on 5 July 2012) (FR2012FF7 ASHEER(E) 201257858 — 20147 A48
Huang Jianming HER 5 July 2012 - 4 July 2014
(appointed on 5 July 2012) (R2012%7 ASHEZT) 201267A50 — 201447848

Chen Zhiyu BREF

18 August 2011 - 5 July 2012

(resigned on 5 July 2012) (F2012%F7 A5 HEHT) 201148 A18H — 20127 A5H
Zheng Xiaowei i 18 August 2011 — 14 March 2012

(re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director
on 15 March 2012 and resigned

on 5 July 2012) 7RA5HEMT)

(201293 /815H H
IENTESATE
HITEFWR20124F

2011484180 — 201253 A 14H
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kong Chun Hin, Jason, (“Mr. Kong”) has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
since 27 August 2012. Mr. Kong reports to the chief executive
officer directly and is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
the Board complies with relevant procedures, laws and regulations
and Board meetings are conducted efficiently and effectively.
Mr. Kong is also responsible for ensuring that the board is fully
appraised of the relevant corporate governance developments
relating to the Group and facilitating the professional development
of the Directors.

In accordance with the newly introduced Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules (effective on 1 April 2012), Mr. Kong has received no less
than 15 hours relevant professional training for the year 2012.

BOARD PROCESS

During the year, the Board met regularly to discuss and formulate
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. In addition to acting by written
resolutions, Directors participated either in person, by proxy, or
through electronic means of communications.

Board members have full access to relevant information both at
the meetings and at regular intervals.

At least 14 days’ notices of all board meetings were given to all
Directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for discussion. The finalised agenda and accompanying
board papers were sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meeting.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors have
conducted a review of the overall effectiveness of the internal

control system of the Group.

The Company held an annual general meeting during the year on
16 May 2012.

30  CGN Mining Company Limited ffEZIEE B[R A A

REAWE

TR E (VT4 ]) B520129F8 F27
AREZEAAARNARWE ([AF]
WED IXEEEMNEENTEER
B WARMREESETHEBANE
FFmZ2RkEp A REES R NG R
REaENFXBH RNEEEBE -
IRENMERERRESGYHREES
BAREEERERBRMOTMERAR
HEEENHEEER -

1R ¥E 57 Sl /Y £ T AR Rl 853.291k (H
2012F4 A1HBAR) » T £ H2012
FEEESBAPR15E/NEERIERE
E3IER -

EEERERF

FR EFSTHMARGE - o m M
EASENERRBIAREERT KX
B-BRBEBEMRBERITEIN BEFH
FHBEBRRIBBEFBATAS A
g% e
EEeNBARER L NEHEEER
HEAR B -

EEEEERUAMEAESTELRD
14BN REFEHRSERET N
AFHEAHEF® - BERNZRRE LA
MEFEXMHRERAFARIIAHEKX
EffRES -

HEC012FF12A31HIEFEE - EF0H
RNEEHANIBEIE RGO BE B R
ITHEET o

FR - ARRQABR2012F5816BBH T
— KR EBEFRE -



Corporate Governance Report ™2 &4 &

Attendance records of each Director at Board meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out as follows:

Directors

Executive Directors

He Zuyuan (Chief Executive Officer)

Li Xianli (appointed on 5 July 2012)

Li Zhengguang (resigned on 5 July 2012)

Zheng Xiaowei (re-designated from a
non-executive Director to
an executive Director
on 15 March 2012 and
resigned on 5 July 2012)

Non-Executive Directors

Yu Zhiping (Chairman)

Wei Qiyan

Jin Yunfei (appointed on 5 July 2012)
Huang Jianming (appointed on 5 July 2012)
Chen Zhiyu (resigned on 5 July 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ling Bing

Qiu Xianhong

Huang Jinsong

BEENEHZE2012F12A31HILFER
A EESLHRMNEFLHEOT

Number of Number of
meetings meetings
attended in attended by
person/held alternate/held
HERES
REHEW
BELE e3¥E
gE¥E A
ARSHE 22%A
HITES
BT (BEHITE) 4/4 -
T (R201267 A5 BEZ ) 2/2 -
ZIEY (FR201267 A5 HBHT) 2/2 -
#EEE (201296 3A 158 H
FEHITEFHER
HITE S R20129F
7ASHEHE)
1/2 1/2
FHITES
REF (FE) 1/4 3/4
BEA 3/4 1/4
ER (R2012F7ASBEZE) 1/2 1/2
&2 (R201267 ASBEZ ) 2/2 -
BRETF (7201297 A5 A EHT) 1/2 -
BYFHTES
EE 3/4 -
BB et 4/4 -
RN 4/4 -

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or a Director arise, the matter was discussed in
a physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent Non-Executive Directors with no conflict of
interest were present at meetings dealing with such conflict.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance in respect of legal action against Directors.
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DELEGATION AND WORK DONE BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership and oversees the Group’s business
management, strategic decisions, performance and affairs of the
Group.

The Board has formulated a clear written policy that delineates
a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for board
approval before making decisions on behalf of the Group. The
reserved matters include, among other things:

1. the development strategy and planning;

2. corporate policies;

3. financial planning;

4. investment planning;

5. annual budget;

6. major disposals and acquisitions;

7. major connected transactions;

8. appointment and resignation of directors, company

secretary and other senior management;
9. other significant operational and financial matters.

In addition to work relating to corporate governance function,
other major work done by the Board during 2012 includes:

1. approving the 2012 budget planning;
2. approving the rules applicable to board proceedings;

3. approving the unaudited interim results for the period
ended 30 June 2012;

4. approving the directors’ report, audited financial statements
and auditors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2011;

5. considering the non-payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and for the period ended 30
June 2012 respectively;

6. proposing the re-election of directors and the authority
of the Board to fix the remuneration of the directors to be

approved at the 2012 annual general meeting;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
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proposing the share issue and repurchase general
mandate to be approved at the 2012 annual general
meeting;

proposing the re-appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited as the auditors of the Company and the authority of
the Board to fix the auditors’ remuneration to be approved
at the 2012 annual general meeting;

approving the entering into of a major and continuing
connected transaction as regards the revolving loan facility
agreement between the Company as lender and China
Uranium Development Company Limited as borrower;

approving the resignation of Mr. Li Zhengguang as
executive Director and member of remuneration committee;

approving the resignation of Ms. Zheng Xiaowei as
executive Director;

approving the resignation of Mr. Chen Zhiyu as non-
executive Director;

approving the resignation of Ms. Cheung Hin Kiu as the
Company Secretary and authorised representative of the
Company;

approving the appointment of Mr. Li Xianli as executive
Director and member of remuneration committee and his
remuneration;

approving the appointment of Ms. Jin Yunfei as non-
executive Director and her remuneration;

approving the appointment of Mr. Huang Jianming as non-
executive Director and his remuneration;

approving the appointment of Mr. Kong Chun Hin Jason as
the Company Secretary and the authorised representative
of the Company;

approving the change of head office and principal place of
business address in Hong Kong.

The day-to-day operation and management of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. Certain authorities and
responsibilities are also delegated to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14

15.

16.

17.

18.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees with defined
terms of reference, which are of no less exacting terms than those
set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) is
delegated by the Board to perform its duties within the ambit of
the terms of reference.

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong (a Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC and with substantial financial accounting, financial
management and auditing experience), who serve as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr. Ling Bing, and one non-
executive Director, Mr. Wei Qiyan.

The function of the Audit Committee is basically to assist the Board
in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of the Group, and overseeing the audit process. The Audit
Committee also serves as a focal point for communication, among
directors, the external auditors, and the management as regards
financial reporting, internal control and the auditing.

Major work done by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2012 includes:

1. assessing the independence and objectivity of external
auditors;
2. reviewing the internal control and risk management system

of the Company;

3. reviewing the unaudited interim results for the period ended
30 June 2012;

4. reviewing the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2011.
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Three (3) Audit Committee meetings were held during the year. The
attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out as follows:

Directors

Qiu Xianhong (Chairman) Rt (F/E)
Wei Qiyan BEA
Ling Bing 22

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) is delegated by the Board to perform its duties within
the ambit of the terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong (re-designated
from a member to the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
on 15 March 2012), Mr. Ling Bing and Mr. Huang Jinsong and
two executive Directors Mr. He Zuyuan (re-designated from the
chairman to a member of the Remuneration Committee on 15
March 2012) and Mr. Li Xianli.

The function of the Remuneration Committee is basically to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure of all remuneration of executive directors, non-executive
directors and senior management and review the specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management with reference to the corporate goals and objectives.
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Major work done by Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2012 includes:

approving the resignation of Mr. Li Zhengguang as
member of the Remuneration Committee and accepting the
appointment of Mr. Li Xianli as member of the Remuneration
Committee;

making recommendations to the Board as to the
remuneration of Mr. Li Xianli as executive Director and chief
financial officer and also member of the Remuneration
Committee;

making recommendations to the Board as to the
remuneration of Ms. Jin Yunfei as non-executive Director;

making recommendations to the Board as to the
remuneration of Mr. Huang Jianming as non-executive
Director.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest paid
individuals are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee did not hold any physical meetings
but the Remuneration Committee acted by written resolutions
during the year.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 15 March 2012 with written terms of
reference in accordance with the Code provisions. The Nomination
Committee is delegated by the Board to perform its duties within
the ambit of terms of reference.

The Nomination Committee comprises one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Yu Zhiping as chairman and one executive Director Mr.
He Zuyuan, and three independent non-executive Directors Mr.
Ling Bing, Mr. Qiu Xianhong and Mr. Huang Jinsong.

The function of the Nomination Committee is basically to
review and formulate the nomination procedure as regards the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of Directors; review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations or any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate strategy; and to make
recommendation to the Board on candidates for appointment as
Directors. The Nomination Committee follows rigorous selection
procedure in choosing the right person as a member of the Board.
Various criteria such as appropriate professional knowledge,
experience, skills and possible contribution of the candidate will
be considered.

Major work done by the Nomination Committee during 2012
includes:

1. reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
2. making recommendations to the Board as to nominating
Mr. Li Xianli as executive Director;

3. making recommendations to the Board as to nominating
Ms. Jin Yunfei as non-executive Director;

4, making recommendations to the Board as to nominating
Mr. Huang Jianming as non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee did not hold any physical meetings but
the Nomination Committee acted by written resolutions during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have
been adopted, appropriate accounting policies have been used
and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates have been made. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The Company’s auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
acknowledged its reporting responsibilities pursuant to the
Corporate Governance Code. The auditor’s responsibilities are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration paid to
the Company'’s auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, is
set out as follows:

PR iR AL 69 AR 7%

EZRS
FREZRTS

Services rendered

Audit services
Non-audit services

The significant amount of fee incurred for the non-audit services
arises from i) performing agreed-upon procedures in respect of
quarterly financial results for the first quarter of 2012; ii) the review
of interim financial statements for six months ended 30 June 2012;
and iii) the preparation of cash flow projections comfort letter
for the purpose of the circular dated 31 October 2012 issued in
connection with the proposed major and continuing connected
transaction in relation to the revolving loan facility agreement.

AMENDEMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has
adopted its amended and restated memorandum of association
and articles of association on 16 May 2012.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ BREMBRAS

MEETING

In order to ensure that all shareholders of the Company enjoy RREAARMBERRER FEMAN
BROMITEE SN - ARBRER
AERMAMNRATEFERAKRERSE -
RAFE - RARHBRAM(2)KXKREIA
g HPheER2012F58168 £17 2
% R & K& M —(1)R 72012411 A
1I5ERITHREFIAE - FEZRE
ZF2012F12ABTH IEFEHERRARE
BERAT

equal status and effectively exercise their own rights, the
Company convenes shareholders’ general meetings every year in
accordance with the Articles of Association. During the year, two
(2) shareholders’ general meetings were held, including the annual
general meeting held on 16 May 2012 and one (1) extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 November 2012. The attendance of
each Director at the general meetings during the year ended 31
December 2012 is set out as follows:

Number of
meetings
attended by
person/held alternate/held

Number of
meetings
attended in

HETES

RELFEDN

g3yE

BaE/ =l
BHERKE 2 E

Executive Directors BITES
He Zuyuan (Chief Executive Officer) AT (BEHTE) 2/2 -
Li Xianli (appointed on 5 July 2012) ZIHT (201267 ASHEZR(T) 1/1 -
Li Zhengguang (resigned on 5 July 2012) Z1EY (201267 A5 B BHT) 0/1 -
Zheng Xiaowei (re-designated from a non- Bl (2012933158

executive Director to an BIFRTESHATR

executive Director on BITES W R20124F

15 March 2012 and resigned 7A5HEHT)

on 5 July 2012) 0/1 -
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Yu Zhiping (Chairman) REF (FE) 0/2 -
Wei Qiyan BEZA 0/2 -
Jin Yunfei (appointed on 5 July 2012) HER (FR2012F7 ASHEERT) 0/1 -
Huang Jianming (appointed on 5 July 2012) H=HEMR (2012750 EERT) 0/1 -
Chen Zhiyu (resigned on 5 July 2012) BEET (201247 ASBEHT) 0/1 -
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ling Bing &R 0/2 -
Qiu Xianhong GBS 0/2 -
Huang Jinsong ESILIN 0/2 -
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles”), on the requisition of one or more
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings, the
Directors may proceed to convene an extraordinary meeting of the
Company (“EGM”").

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM and deposited at
the registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands and/or the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
requisitionists must state the purposes of the meeting and sign the
requisition letter.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed to convene a meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene a meeting,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Company Secretary, Mr. Jason Kong, in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CGN Mining Company Limited
Suites 6706-07, 67/F., Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2. By facsimile: (852) 2806 2861

3. By email: cs@cgnmc.com
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Voting by poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules and Article 72 of the
Articles, any votes of the Shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll, except where the chairman in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural
or administrative matter to be voted or by a show of hands.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a general
meeting shall follow the procedures below.

On the requisition in writing of either i) any number of shareholder
of the Company representing not less than one-fortieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or ii) not less than 50 shareholders, the Company shall, at
the expense of the requisitionists:

a) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting;

b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company in Cayman
Islands and/or the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary not less
than 6 weeks before the general meeting in case of a requisition
requires notice of a resolution, or not less than 1 week before the
general meeting for any other requisition.

By Order of the Board
Jason Kong
Company Secretary
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged in
trading of natural uranium. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in selling, distributing and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and
food products and property investment. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year is set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The head office and principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong has changed from Unit 7, 31st Floor, Tower 1, Lippo
Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong to Suites 6706-6707, 67/F.,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, with effect
from 23 July 2012.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 68 of the annual report.

Since the Group intends to retain sufficient capital for business
development, the Board would not recommend the payment of a
final dividend (2011: Nil).

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2011: Nil)

With effect on 20 July 2012, the Company has discontinued its
voluntary practice of publishing the quarterly financial results
for the first and third quarters of each financial year (“Quarterly
Reporting”). The Company continues to publish the Group’s
interim 6-month and annual financial results and other disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Board considers that
the new practice of discontinuing Quarterly Reporting is more cost
effective and efficient and would not prejudice the interests of the
Company’s shareholders and potential investors as a whole.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2012 is set out on
page 2 of the annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out on pages 72 and 73 of the annual report.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, AND
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE
RIGHT

Details of the movements in intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, and prepaid lease payments on
land use right of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18, 19 and 20
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In 2011, the Company issued convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$600,000,000, which can be converted into
2,608,695,652 shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.23
per share. The proceeds from convertible bonds may finance new
business opportunities or investments of the Group. Details of
the convertible bonds are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Zuyuan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Li Xianli (appointed on 5 July 2012)

Mr. Li Zhengguang (resigned on 5 July 2012)

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director
on 15 March 2012 and resigned
on 5 July 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Zhiping (Chairman)

Mr. Wei Qiyan

Ms. Jin Yunfei (appointed on 5 July 2012)

Mr. Huang Jianming (appointed on 5 July 2012)
Mr. Chen Zhiyu (resigned on 5 July 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ling Bing

Mr. Qiu Xianhong

Mr. Huang Jinsong

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting
but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at such
general meeting. On 5 July 2012, Mr. Li Xianli was appointed as
an executive Director, and Mr. Huang Jianming and Ms. Jin Yunfei
were appointed as non-executive Directors. All of them were
appointed on 5 July 2012 and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the next annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles, Mr. He Zuyuan and
Mr. Qiu Xianhong will retire from office by rotation as Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), in respect of those Directors who
are due to retire and offer for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the Director’s service contracts, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 16 to 19.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2012
amounted to approximately HK$946,974,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

None of the Company and its subsidiaries redeemed any of
its shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “2010
Share Option Scheme”) in the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 2 June 2010 and terminated the share option
scheme approved by the shareholders of the Company on 23 July
20083 (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”) at the same meeting.

The “2010 Share Option Scheme”

After adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, no share option
was granted. The following disclosure is a summary of the 2010
Share Option Scheme as required by Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

(1) Purpose:

The purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to Eligible Participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Company
and/or any of the Subsidiaries.

2) Participants:

The Eligible Participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme
to whom option(s) may be granted by the Board shall
include any employees, non-executive directors, directors,
suppliers, customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture
partners and any shareholders of any members of the
Group or any invested entities or any holders of any
securities issued by any members of the Group or any
invested entities.
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(4)

5)

(6)
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Total number of shares available for issue under the 2010
Share Option Scheme and percentage of issued share
capital at the date of approval of the share option scheme:

The number of shares which can be issued is 155,105,699
shares representing approximately 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the 2010
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Options granted under the 2010 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
Options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period
must not exceed one percent (1%) of the then total issued
share capital of the Company (the “Individual Limit”).

The periods within which the shares must be taken up
under an option:

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part and
in accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on the day on which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than
ten (10) years commencing from the date the Board makes
an offer of the grant of an option subject to the provisions
for early termination thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the
offer of the grant of options to an Eligible Participant, there
is no minimum period for which an option granted under
the 2010 Share Option Scheme must be held before it can
be exercised.
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(7)

(8)

9)

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments of calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be paid:

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an
Eligible Participant within twenty-eight (28) days from the
date of the offer of grant of the option. A consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of
an option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

Subject to the adjustment made in accordance with the
terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price
in respect of any particular option shall be such price as
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the
time of making the offer of grant of an option (which shall
be stated in the letter containing the offer of grant of an
option) but in any case the exercise price must be at least
the highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The remaining life:

The 2010 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2010.

The “2003 Share Option Scheme”

The share option scheme effective on 26 January 2002 was

replaced by a new share option scheme adopted by the
shareholders on 23 July 2003 (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to grant share

options to selected participants satisfying the criteria according to

the 2003 Share Option Scheme as incentives or rewards for their

contribution to the Group.
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The maximum number of securities to be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2003 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant shares
capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 127,746,216 shares representing
10% of the share in issue at the date of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme. Subsequently, the general scheme limit was refreshed
and approved at the annual general meeting on 31 May 2005, and
the limit was re-set to 154,170,699 shares.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the options. The subscription price
for shares under the 2003 Share Option Scheme will be a price
determined by the Directors but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for trades in one or more board lot of shares
on the date of the offer of grant, or (i) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for trades in one or more board lot of shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant,
and (iii) the nominal value of shares. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2003 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
period may commence from the date of acceptance of the offer
but shall and in any event be not later than ten years from the
date on which the offer is made subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.
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The 2003 Share Option Scheme commenced on 23 July 2003 and
ended on 2 June 2010.

First phase:

On 21 June 2002, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.39 per share. Those who were granted with
the options can exercise their rights in multiple periods starting
from 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 6,850,000 shares

From 1 January 20083 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 8,280,000 shares

From 1 January 2004 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 6,510,000 shares

From 1 January 2005 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 8,360,000 shares

Among the grantees in this grant of share options, 108 of them
are full-time employees of the Company and an aggregate of
21,100,000 options were granted to them; 29 of them are staff of
major customers of the Company and an aggregate of 8,900,000
options are granted to them. During the year ended 31 December
2012, 100,000 share options granted were lapsed, no option was
forfeited or cancelled. As at 31 December 2012, no share options
remained outstanding and exercisable.

Second phase:

On 28 February 2003, the Directors granted options to three
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group to subscribe for
19,800,000 shares of the Company, with an exercise price at
HK$0.24 per share. The grantees are entitled to exercise the
subscription rights on or before 6 February 2012.

All of the options in this phase were fully exercised in 2004.
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Third phase:

On 29 September 2003, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.51 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 2
January 2004 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 2 January 2004 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 8,990,000 shares

From 2 July 2004 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 21,010,000 shares

As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 14 of them are full-time employees of the Group
and an aggregate of 16,595,000 options were granted to them;
5 of them are directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group and
an aggregate of 12,405,000 options were granted to them; and
one of them is a consultant of a wholly owned subsidiary and
1,000,000 options were granted. In year 2003, 1,500,000 options
were waived by a grantee. During the year ended 31 December
2012, 760,000 share options granted were lapsed, no option was
forfeited or cancelled. As at 31 December 2012, no share options
remained outstanding and exercisable.

Fourth phase:

On 12 September 2005, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 69,800,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.23 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1
January 2006 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 1 January 2006 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 34,900,000 shares

From 1 January 2007 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 34,900,000 shares
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As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 12 of them are full-time employees of the Group
and an aggregate of 11,000,000 options were granted to them; 3
of them are executive directors of the Company and an aggregate
of 35,000,000 options were granted to them; 3 of them are
independent non-executive directors of the Company and an
aggregate of 4,500,000 options were granted to them; 2 of them
are ex-executive directors of the Company in the past 12 months
and an aggregate of 18,000,000 options were granted to them;
and 2 of them are directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group
and an aggregate of 1,300,000 options were granted to them.

All of the options in this phase were fully exercised in 2011.

Fifth phase:

On 29 January 2008, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 67,500,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.28 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1
October 2008 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 1 October 2008 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 20,250,000 shares

From 1 January 2009 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 47,250,000 shares

As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 6 of them are full-time employees of the Group
and an aggregate of 16,000,000 options were granted to them;
4 of them are executive directors of the Company and an
aggregate of 34,000,000 options were granted to them; 1 of
them is independent non-executive director of the Company
and 1,500,000 options were granted; 1 of them is a director of a
subsidiary of the Company and 2,000,000 options were granted;
1 of them is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
3,000,000 options were granted; and 3 of them are consultants
of the Company and an aggregate of 11,000,000 options were
granted to them. During the year ended 31 December 2011,
65,500,000 share options granted were exercised, no option was
forfeited, or cancelled. All of the options in this phase were fully
exercised in 2011.
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Other share options

On 22 September 2003, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire the remaining 15% minority interest of the subsidiary,
Vital Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co Ltd. The remaining monetary
consideration of the acquisition amounting to approximately
HK$28.3 million representing 60% of the total consideration will be
settled at the sole option of the Company, either in cash or in new
ordinary share of the Company. On or before the following dates,
the Company may opt to pay cash or to issue new ordinary shares
by serving a notice to the seller (the “Notice”):

o 22 March 2004: HK$9,433,962;

. 22 September 2004: HK$9,433,962; and

o 22 March 2005: HK$9,433,962.

The number of shares is calculated at a price that is equal to
the higher of the average 30 day closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange immediately prior to the date of the
Notice and HK$0.46 per share. The maximum number of shares
to be issued if based on HK$0.46 per share will be 61,525,839. A
conditional approval has been obtained from the Stock Exchange
for the listing of and permission to deal in the share options. All of
the options in this phase were fully exercised in 2005.

Details of the movement of share options are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in notes 3
and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF COMPANY WEBSITE

The website of the Company has been changed from “www.vital-
pharm.com” to “http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/cgnmining/index.htm”,
with effect from 3 January 2012.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a)

54

The Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFO”)) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Number of ordinary
shares of HK$0.01

each (“Share”)

(Note 1)
EREE0.013E T
sERERG ([Re 1) HE
(P5E1)

8,500,000 (L)

Name of Director

Capacity
EEpE 54

Mr. Huang Jianming Personal interest

wEALE (EVN: £

Note:

1. The letter “L” stands for the Director’s long position in the
Shares.
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(b)
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company had any interest and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division
7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ interest and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2012, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following
persons/entities, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

(b)
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Company/
Name of
Group member
I -
REATER

Capacity

Number of
shares
(Note 3)
G2 E
(FiEE3)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
BRAERAY
BO

Perfect Develop Holding Inc. Corporate Beneficial owner 522,526,940 (L) 15.68% (L)
(Note 4) 450,000,000 (S) 13.50% (S)

Perfect Develop Holding Inc. NG ERlBEA
G2y

China Uranium Development Corporate Beneficial owner 4,728,695,652 (L) 141.89% (L)
Company Limited (Note 1 & 2) 550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)

REEhFERERAAE (Ft1k2) NS EaBAA

CGNPC Uranium Resources Corporate Interest in a controlled  4,728,695,652 (L) 141.89% (L)
Co. Ltd. (Note 5 & 6) corporation 550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)

hEZHEERAR A NS X EE RS
(M5 5%6)

China Guangdong Nuclear Power Corporate Interest in a controlled  4,728,695,652 (L) 141.89% (L)
Holding Corporation, Ltd. (Note 7) corporation 550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)

hEERZEEEERAR (ME7) NS XS

Silver Grant International Industries Corporate Beneficial owner 550,354,609 (L) 16.51% (L)
Limited (Note 2)

FREREXERAR (HF2) NG EGHlEA

Notes: iz -

56

1.

The long position represents (i) the 1,670,000,000
Shares held by China Uranium Development Company
Limited (“China Uranium Development”) (ii) the interests
in the 2,608,695,652 Shares to be allotted and issued
upon the full exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the convertible bonds in the principle amount of
HK$600,000,000 at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.23 issued by the Company on 18 August 2011
(the “Convertible Bonds”), and (iii) the interest in the
450,000,000 Shares held under the Share Charge as
stated in note 4 below.
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China Uranium Development and Silver Grant
International Industries Limited (“Silver Grant”) entered
into a Subscription Agreement dated 23 March 2012
(the “Subscription Agreement”). Upon completion of
the Subscription Agreement on 1 June 2012, China
Uranium Development had issued and Silver Grant had
subscribed for an exchangeable bond in the principal
amount of HK$776,000,000 (the “Exchangeable Bond”),
pursuant to which Silver Grant can exercise the exchange
right (the “Exchange Right”) at the exchange price of
HK$1.41 (subject to adjustment) to request China Uranium
Development to transfer to it the shares of the Company
held by China Uranium Development. Assuming that Silver
Grant fully exercise the Exchange Right, China Uranium
Development will transfer an aggregate of 550,354,609
Shares (representing approximately 16.51% of the then
existing share capital of the Company) to Silver Grant.

The letter “L” denotes the person’s/entity’s long position
in the shares. The letter “S” denotes the person’s/entity’s
short position in the shares.

The issued share capital of Perfect Develop Holding Inc. is
beneficially owned as to 58.28% by Mr. Tao Lung, 30.67%
by Mr. Huang Jianming and 11.05% by Mr. Liu James Jin.
Mr. Tao Lung, Mr. Huang Jianming and Mr. Liu James Jin
are founders of the Group. Mr. Tao Lung and Mr. Liu James
Jin are former executive Directors of the Company. Mr.
Huang Jianming is a founder of the Group and is currently
a non-executive Director of the Company. Pursuant to a
share charge dated 1 April 2011 (the “Share Charge”),
Perfect Develop Holding Inc. charged 450,000,000 Shares
in favour of China Uranium Development.

CGNPC Uranium Resources Co. Ltd. (“CGNPC-URC”,
formerly known as CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd.) holds
100% of the issued share capital of China Uranium
Development. Therefore, CGNPC-URC is deemed to
be interested in 4,728,695,652 Shares by virtue of its
shareholding of China Uranium Development.
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6. The long position represents (i) the interests held by China
Uranium Development as stated in note 1 above, (ii) the
interests in the 2,608,695,652 Shares to be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to Convertible Bonds issued by the Company on 18
August 2011 and (iii) 450,000,000 Shares under the Share
Charge as stated in note 4 above.

7. China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Corporation,
Ltd. holds 100% of the equity interests of CGNPC-URC.
Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest held
by CGNPC-URC.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
person as at 31 December 2012 who had an interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHT
TO SUBSCRIBE FOR SHARES

Save as disclosed in the annual report, none of the Company’s
Directors and chief executive (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted,
or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares, warrants or
debentures (if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1.

Framework agreement entered into between CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co., Ltd (“CGNPC-URC”) (formerly
known as “CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd”) and the
Company (the “Framework Agreement”)

On 21 October 2011, the Company and CGNPC-URC
entered into the Framework Agreement in relation to the
sale of Natural Uranium (as defined in the Framework
Agreement) by the Group to CGNPC-URC during the
Effective Period (as defined in the Framework Agreement).
Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the Group
agreed to sell and CGNPC-URC agreed to purchase and
purchase on behalf of certain End Users (as defined in the
Framework Agreement) certain amount of Natural Uranium
during the Effective Period. The Framework Agreement took
effect on 28 November 2011 (“Effective Date”).

As at date of Framework Agreement, CGNPC-URC is
the sole shareholder of China Uranium Development,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, which holds
approximately 50.11% equity interest in the Company.
CGNPC-URC is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The transaction
contemplated under the Framework Agreement constitutes
a continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Annual Cap Amounts of the transaction value fee
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transaction
payable for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 is
HK$2,246,400,000.
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60

Revolving Loan Facility Agreement between CGN Mining
Company Limited and China Uranium Development
Company Limited (“China Uranium Development”)

On 15 October 2012, the Company as lender and
China Uranium Development as borrower entered into
the Revolving Loan Facility Agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company will provide
the Revolving Loan of an amount not exceeding US$100
million (approximately HK$780 million) to China Uranium
Development for a term of one year commencing from the
date of passing the relevant resolutions at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 15 November 2012.

The Company is owned as to approximately 50.11% equity
interest by China Uranium Development and accordingly
China Uranium Development is the Controlling Shareholder
of the Company. Therefore, China Uranium Development
is a connected person of the Company. The entering into
of the Revolving Loan Facility Agreement and the provision
of the Revolving Loan to China Uranium Development
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is
subject to the reporting requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

The interest rate of each Single Loan (as defined in the
Facility Agreement) shall be calculated from the Drawdown
Date (as defined in the Facility Agreement) until the full
repayment date of the Single Loan on the basis of 360
days per annum in the following ways:

(a) 1 month LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is less
than 3 months;

(b) 3 months LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is
between 3-6 months; or
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(c)) 6 months LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is
more than 6 months.

If the Single Loan Period (as defined in the Facility
Agreement) is less than or equal to 6 months, all interest
accrued shall be paid in a lump sum on the Single Loan
Due Date (as defined in the Facility Agreement). If the
Single Loan Period is more than 6 months: (i) depending
on actual circumstances, in the event that the Drawdown
Date of that Single Loan falls between 21 December to 20
June (both dates inclusive), all interest accrued during the
First Interest Period shall be paid on 21 June; in the event
that the Drawdown Date of that Single Loan falls between
21 June to 20 December (both dates inclusive), all interest
accrued during the First Interest Period shall be paid on 21
December; and (ii) after the First Interest Period, depending
on actual circumstances, all interest accrued during Other
Interest Period shall be paid on 21 June and 21 December
of each year. However, all interest accrued during the Final
Interest Period shall be paid on the Single Loan Due Date.

China Uranium Development was not required to provide
any guarantee or charge any assets to the Company under
the Facility Agreement because the Company considers
the relevant risk of default as extremely low.

The purpose of the continuing connected transaction is
to enhance the return on investment on the Company’s
surplus cash resources while maintaining the flexibility
of cash flow for any further business development or
investment opportunities.

The Cap Amount of the Revolving Loan is US$100 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$780 million).
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Annual review of continuing connected transactions

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirm that the continuing connected transactions
set out above have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third party or; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have also reviewed these continuing
connected transactions and confirmed to the Board that these

transactions:
1. have been approved by the Board;
2. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant

agreement governing the transactions;

3. are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (if
the transactions involve provision of goods or services by
the Group); and

4, have not exceeded the relevant annual caps disclosed in
previous announcements.

The Board acknowledged the receipt of the auditors’ confirmation

letter dated 5 March 2013 which confirms the matters as required
by Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 97%
— five largest suppliers combined 99%

Sales
— the largest customer 95%
— five largest customers combined 96%

CGNPC-URC, the largest customer of the Company, is the sole
shareholder of China Uranium Development, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. CGNPC-URC is a connected person
of the Company. Mr. He Zuyuan, an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company, Mr. Yu Zhiping, a non-executive
Director and chairman, Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (an executive Director
who resigned on 5 July 2012), Mr. Wei Qiyan, a non-executive
Director and Ms. Jin Yunfei (a non-executive Director who was
appointed on 5 July 2012) are all the directors of China Uranium
Development and/or the senior management of CGNPC-URC at
different material time throughout 2012. Save as disclosed above,
none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company and their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or may
cause any significant competition with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or
may have with the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has not made any charitable donations.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report, the
Company believe that the number of securities of the Company
which are in the hands of the public is higher than the relevant
prescribed minimum percentage.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 have been audited by Messrs. SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Yu Zhiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2013
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

fekspda

Shine‘ZOan

TO THE MEMBERS OF CGN MINING COMPANY LIMITED
FEZIBEEERAR
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN
Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to
179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
5 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement Zr & UkEF &
For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

2012 2011
20124 20114F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b FTET FAT
Turnover ] 8 1,232,287 372,726
Cost of sales $HE AR (1,031,057)  (264,758)
Gross profit EF 201,230 107,968
Other operating income HABALZUA 8 54,255 31,752
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB A 32 - 30,599
Selling and distribution expenses HE MDY (34,526) (97,953)
Administrative expenses TS (130,369) (93,193)
Termination benefits BRI 15 - (54,728)
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FERYIE « BE X
of property, plant and equipment FAEREBE 18 - (72,001)
Changes in fair value of investment REWEAREE
properties 19 5,853 (24,438)
Impairment loss recognised in respect MR R EREEE
of goodwill 21 - (52,355)
Finance costs R R AN 10 (25,930) (10,524)
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBiATE A (E51E) 70,513 (234,873)
Income tax (expense) credit Frigti () e 11 (51,866) 3,417
Profit (loss) for the year REZmF (E18) 12 18,647 (231,456)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: 51| A+ FE{G 2R 5 A
(E18) -
Owners of the Company KARERBA 18,660 (229,858)
Non-controlling interests JEFE R (13) (1,598)
18,647  (231,456)
Earnings (loss) per share GR&EHN (EE) 14
Basic B HK0.56  HK(10.31)
centsi#Efll  cents#fl
Diluted By HKO0.56 HK(10.31)
centsiEfll  centsiB(ll
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 452 H K FHE K
For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#E  TAT

Profit (loss) for the year NEZmF (EE) 18,647 (231,456)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hiarmas (Fx)

Exchange differences arising on translating BREBINEBEEZ

foreign operations fEHER
Gain arising during the year REEEE 2 W 1,773 29,288
Reclassification adjustments for the AEERHERETABRZ
cumulative gain included in profit 2 EH 2
or loss upon disposal during the year BN AR = (21,649)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEGEMEARE 1,773 7,639
Total comprehensive income (expense) AFEEL2EMEE
for the year (AxX) % 20,420 (223,817)
Total comprehensive income (expense) THALEEAFE2E RS
for the year attributable to: (Fx) 4258 -
Owners of the Company KAREBA 20,429 (222,426)
Non-controlling interests PR S 9) (1,391)

20,420 (223,817)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =& Bt AR R &

As at 31 December 2012 22012512 F31H

2012 2011
20125 20114
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b FExT AT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Intangible assets mPEE 17 266 322
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB L& 18 49,878 63,007
Investment properties WEYE 19 83,530 76,790
Prepaid lease payments on land T+ b (E R RETEL
use rights HERE 20 19,751 19,918
Goodwill S 21 - -
153,425 160,037
Current assets RENEE
Properties under development ERPYIE 22 - -
Inventories T8 23 11,548 408,422
Loan receivable from a shareholder eI — B IERAE TR 24 775,174 -
Trade and other receivables 7 it B R % L b U R 25 266,611 96,467
Prepaid lease payments on land T b TR TR EFKIA
use rights 20 397 366
Income tax recoverable AT E AT 1SR = 16,207
Bank balances and cash IRITHEF MRS 26
- pledged — B 644 678
— unpledged — EAI 604,671 1,262,857
1,659,045 1,784,997
Total assets BEEHAE 1,812,470 1,945,034
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FETBR N E b FE A~ 08 27 220,066 424,922
Value added tax payable FERIZET 943 4,187
Income tax payable FERFRSEL 27,190 -
248,199 429,109
Net current assets REBEEZE 1,410,846 1,355,888
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAR 1,564,271 1,515,925
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =& Bt AR R &

As at 31 December 2012 22012512 H31H

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TAT

Capital and reserves BEARK #E

Share capital N 28 33,326 33,326

Reserves (Gt 1,021,947 1,001,518
Equity attributable to owners of AATEE AEEERS

the Company 1,055,273 1,034,844
Non-controlling interests IR ERS 2,014 2,023
Total equity ERBEE 1,057,287 1,036,867
Non-current liabilities ERBARE

Convertible bonds AT AR B 29 493,413 467,483

Deferred tax liabilities EEFTEAE 30 13,571 11,575

506,984 479,058
1,564,271 1,615,925

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 179 were BN EBRITIBE 2R AT B HRERN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 5 20133 A58 & & = € it /i & % # T

March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: BB TIESERREE
Yu Zhiping REF He Zuyuan fAI#H7T
Director E% Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ZR SRS B R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

Attributable to owners of the Company
N
Equity
component of ~ Exchange Share Enterprise Properties Non-
Share Share  convertible translation ~ options  Reserve development  Retained revaluation controlling

capital  premium bonds  reserve  reserve Fund fund  eanings  reserve Total interests

& 3 mEE JEER
B G BREES il e
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt BT

At 1 January 2011 RO1F1A18 15511 251175 - 68,501 9,891 54,373 616 294523 9,011 703,601 3414 707,015
Loss for the year TEERR - - - - - - - (229858 - (29858)  (1598) (231.456)
Other comprehensive AR fh

income for the year ks
Bxchenge diferences  EESIEHE

arising on translating Er7EY

foreign operations Z2
Gain arising KEREEL
during the year e - - - 29,081 - - - - - 29081 07 29288
Reclassification AEERNLE
adjustments for the BT A
cumulative gain R gt
included in proft or Witz
Joss upon disposal Exipr
during the year Bk - - - (16409 - - - - - (21649) - (21649)
Totdl comprehensive ~ AEEZE
(e¥pense) income (i) Y
for the year ot - - - 7432 - - - (229858) - (2242)  (1391) (223817)
Issue of shares Bk
(Note 29 (Fis28) 16700 367,400 - - - - - - - 3410 - 0
Transaction coss ki
aibuiabletoissue  RFHA
of shares - (1860) - - - - - - - (18 - (g
Bxercise of share options {7 iE 115 41205 - - (07 - - - - 32,603 - 32603
Recognifonof equiy ~ EAMARES
component of convertiole - RAZ%
bonds - - 139,503 - - - - - - 139,508 - 139503
Transaction costs EIMARES
arbutableloissie 2B
of convertble bonds - - (676) - - - - - - (67) - (676)
Disposal of subsiclaries  HENBAF - - - - - (19878) (616) 20494 - - - -
At31December 2011 R2011%
12A318 33326 657,939 138,827 75933 154 34,49 - 85,159 9,011 1,034,844 2023 1,036,867
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &S 8%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADRREARE

Equity
component of  Exchange Share Properties Non-
Share Share  convertible translation  options  Reserve  Retained revaluation controlling
capital  premium bonds  reserve reserve Fund  eanings  reserve Total interests Total

TRRES R NEER FER
k& ROEE ks EXRE e ®BREE REEY i it Bi At
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TET  TER Tén TER  TEr  TEn  TEr TEn  TEn  TEn  TER
(Note)
(&)

At 1January 2012 201251718 33326 657939 138,827 75,933 154 34,495 85,159 9,011 1,034,844 2,023 1,036,867
Profit for the year AEEEF - - - - - - 18,660 - 18,660 (1) 18647
Other comprehensive KR fh

income for the year 2ENE
Exchange diferences  AEIEEHAEL

aisngontranglaing  ZEREE

foreign operations
Gain arising during KEREEL
the year W - - - 1,769 - - - - 1,769 4 1,773
Total comprehensive  AFE2E
income for the year lhest = = = 1,769 - - 18,660 - 20,429 (9 20420
At31 December 2012 R2012%
12A318 33326 657939 138,827 77702 154 34,495 103,819 9,011 1,085,273 2,014 1,057,287

Note: Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) have M RAZEARLME (THE]) Kz

appropriated 10% of the profit to reserve fund. The reserve fund Bt B8 X R 28 1 0 B 2 10% 5 A R 8
is required to be retained in the accounts of the subsidiaries for © o REESEARBRWBRARZE
specific purposes. BAERERR -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows G5 R ERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
R TAT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit (loss) before taxation BREADEF (E18) 70,513 (234,873)
Adjustments for; P
Amortisation of intangible assets HMiEmpEE 60 333
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments g RETENAER
on land use rights 397 723
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - B MERETE 6,340 9,458
(Increase) decrease in fair value of BEMER A
investment properties (12 hn) m (5,853) 24,438
Finance costs BhE RN 25,930 10,524
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR K = (30,599)
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading investment HEFEEFTKRE Z WG - (13)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill  HERFEERI(EEE - 52,355
Impairment loss recognised in respect WRYE - BEREE
of property, plant and equipment HIEEE = 72,001
Impairment loss recognised in respect R ER & EREEIE
of intangible assets - 2,558
Impairment loss recognised in respect TEREYER SR EEE
of trade receivables = 85
Bank interest income RITHEWA (24,594) (5,911)
Loan interest income from a shareholder —BRE 2 EHFEMA (5,479) -
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - BREREEL
plant and equipment s (19,289) (11,804)
Recovery of indemnified taxation W el FERIE (2,960) -
Write-back of long outstanding payables B RHEARN 2 B FRIE - (3,554)
Write-off of other receivables il 55 5L A FE WS SR IE = 1,887
Write-down and write-off of inventories Mo EMsEEE 3,494 20,765
Reversal of write-down of inventories BEEMORFE (1,154) -
Operating cash flow before movements LBESEHAI
in working capital KERSRE 47,405 (91,627)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (120 394,705 (325,032)
Increase in properties under development R PYIEEIE N = (11,215)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables  FEUER 5% I B fth JE U R 1B
(&) wE (203,531) 2,906
Increase in tax recoverable AU EI R IR N (3,700) (4,000)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables A BR 3 N E b FE AT FRIE
R &0 (205,841) 370,828
(Decrease) increase in value added tax payable FERIIGER ORd) #n (3,244) 596
Cash from (used in) operations LEZEIEFE (FTA) Be 25,794 (57,544)
Hong Kong tax paid SN T (10,566) -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax refund (paid) BiR (B) REIEMETR 7,714 (12,378)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING REXBME FrA) REFHE
ACTIVITIES 22,942 (69,922)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &8 EEREE

2012
20125

HK$’000
FERT

Notes

B aE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

2011
20114
HK$'000
T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Net cash inflow from disposal of HENBRARIBESRAFEH

subsidiaries (net of bank balances (B & ZRITEF R

and cash disposed of) HE) 32 - 296,653
Balance of proceed received for disposal &R B A TS IE

of a subsidiary FES 32(d) 35,800 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEMR

plant and equipment FR1SRIE 31,299 24,759
Bank interest income received HRITHEUWA 28,280 1,869
Decrease in pledged bank balances EHRIRTT AR D 34 12,161
Loan advanced to a shareholder BT —BERENER (775,174) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment HBEYE - BEMERE (4,543) (8,948)
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading HE R EIREERIE

investment = 2,186
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING REFH (FAA) s

ACTIVITIES HEFEE (684,304) 328,680
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEE
Recovery of indemnified taxation W [El R (EHIE 2,960 -
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds, BT RE S FTISFE

net of issuing expenses HMBREBITRX S 597,093
Proceeds from issue of shares, BTN FT1S5/IA -

net of issuing expenses MBREITHX = 382,239
Proceeds from shares issued under share RIRBE AT &3

option scheme R A7 P15 I8 = 32,603
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRITEE = (75,632)
Interest paid ERFE = (3,466)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ B&EBFEHRE RE 2,960 932,837
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReRBELEEER

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (B2 EinEeE (658,402) 1,191,595
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REDZRERRE

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR £EEA 1,262,857 68,146
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MERE BT E 216 3,116
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND REKZEESRESEEIER -

OF THE YEAR, represented BN RRIT S MR E

by unpledged bank balances and cash 604,671 1,262,857
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 Bt #& i R M1zt

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

76

GENERAL

CGN Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liabilities. The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent is FEHEHEERE A
&) (China Uranium Development Company Limited) (“China
Uranium Development”), which was incorporated in Hong
Kong. Its ultimate parent is FEERZEEBEAER QA
(China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Corporation),
which was established in the PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are selling,
distributing and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and
food products, property investment and trading of natural
uranium.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while the functional currency
of the Company is United States dollars (“USD”). As the
Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company consider that it is appropriate to present the
consolidated financial statements in HKS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 B #& R R M1z

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
in the current year. Under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for
the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using
the fair value model. As a result of the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12, the directors of the Company
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties in the
PRC are held under a business model whose obijective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, the directors of the Company
have determined that the ‘sale’ presumption set out in the
amendments to HKAS 12 is rebutted. As a result, the Group
continues to measure the deferred tax relating to these
investment properties on the basis that the entire carrying
amounts of the properties were recovered through use.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
The Group has not early applied the following new or

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

ER#HETRRIETE R
BBREEAN (FEBHK
HwEAER ) (#)

A B IR R T 5 B B A
WMok A BT RGBT B
B SR 2B

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRSs -
Government Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and

and HKFRS 7 Transition Disclosures*

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements,

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
and Separate Financial Statements:
Investment Entities®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation
(“Int") 20

Comprehensive Income’
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine?

EAUBREES 20095 — 2011 B
TR FEE
BAEKRE R ENFRERTBRE
F15BIA 8- pETe
BAEERE R RE-SREEN
ETHBITR SRARNERER
BREERS R EENRRL R Z08H
SORRABMERS  AHMEMASR
ER|ETRBAA aRlnz
EAERBRS RS0 SRIA
EABBRSENEI0E BAHBRR
EARBRSENENS BATHE
BARBREENS1% AENELZENER
ERBBRERAZE DAE]E
BAEBRE R BAUKER BATHR

2105 BENE
REEBE11RR
BREERE R
E1REIA
BREERE R
108 BEYE
BERBE1RR
Bhaq
EYIE L

R LR R

BA SR Z10%
(Ro0114453T)

B SR 2073
(Ro0114453T)

BALIENF8Y
(Moot1E67])

BAGIHENE
HE

B (BRyERERE
ZEE)-REZNR

REN B EREL
BREI

FRUBER  BER
R EBNELR
BUMHRE
REER

Efp 2ENERROIIH

BRI

BUHHHR

REBENARAELE

SREENSRAGN
Liglig8

BRBALESH
B

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 B #& R R M1z

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include
the amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and the amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is
required to present a third statement of financial position
only when the retrospective application, restatement or
reclassification has a material effect on the information in
the third statement of financial position and that related
notes are not required to accompany the third statement of
financial position.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts,
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
classified as property, plant and equipment when they meet
the definition of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16
and as inventory otherwise. The directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax
on distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as the Group has already
adopted this treatment.

2.

FERAHTREETE B
BHEER ([FBUMK
SR ) (@)

A=A

A2012F6 AR EERBUKRSE
XH2009F Z2011 FHEHMNFE
i

BB %5 4 RJ2009F £ 2011
FRBNFENEREHZESR
BB E LR ZIBIEE] © &
FEFTR2013F1A1B K 24 5
BEFEHR AR - BAYHR
SEAETABIEE R A E
RIEE165% (93 - B R&E] B
B RBBEFELERRE (2
BMIA : 58] HEET -

BREGHERE IR ZETARES
ERREEBWER  ZIREH
DEHE DR BARNRERAN
BEREREAFZENBAT 4
AEINE=DMBIMREK - 18R
BB FE 2B 7R BB I 10 26 = 1 B IS AR
M o

B ERFI6RIEFT AM
B TEMF - RERERERT
RE-ENABESERE16
BETHE BERRKBHOE
- ABDBRME  BEK&E
B BRHESBERER AR
EXRMERALEEIRTEY
AEBENGEEMBEHREIEKRER

By 488
42—

BFE G ERFER2R/ETAE
B AERATASAEAMEDIK
BT IS B A B IR X 5 B R 5 X
K- EAREEFB G ERIF 1257
[EHRI AR AAREER
Hl > HA G ERIFEI25FMER]
BT EHAREENGA M BRE
EREATE FARAKEER
PR THZER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 —ZE——44%% 79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 Bt #& i R M1zt

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

80

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement
or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures
should also be provided retrospectively for all comparative
periods. However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not
effective until annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014, with retrospective application required.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result
in more disclosures being made with regard to offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 B #& R R M1z

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the reclassification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed

review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements. HK (SIC) — Int 12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10,
there is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In
addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that
contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control should be classified. HK
(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the
effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint
arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31,
there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11
are required to be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under
HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standards and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements and associates, and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier
application permitted provided that all of these standards
are applied at the same time.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these five standards will have a significant
impact on amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception
to consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity,
except where the subsidiaries provide services that relate
to the investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required
to measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (Continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to
be met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
have been made to introduce new disclosure requirements
for investment entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014, with earlier application permitted. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments will have no effect on the Group as the
Company is not an investment entity.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The standards defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new standards may affect certain amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements and result in
more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’ and an ‘income
statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss’. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not
change the option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in future
accounting periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment
properties that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition and up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any,
and is presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment losses.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill below). Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in
the production or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial asset and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loan receivable from
a shareholder, trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
of financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period ranging from 25 to 180
days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance amount are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and convertible bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the bonds into equity, is included in equity (equity
component of convertible bonds).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in equity
component of convertible bonds until the conversion option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in equity
component of convertible bonds will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in equity component of
convertible bonds will be released to the retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity components are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined by apportionment of the total land and
development costs including capitalisation of borrowing
costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months
or less. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits as defined above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees (on or before 7
November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 January 2005)

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded as share premium. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (after 7 November
2002 and vested on or after 1 January 2005)

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will continue to be held in share options reserve.

Share options granted to other eligible participants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless the fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless
the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

3.

FESTTEE @)

BEEHEZBRONRRS (&)

[AIES R 1B (2002F 1157
H# G R2005F191H 3.2 1%
EB)

SEBBRERNRELARZAAE
BEZRERBAAE  EEKR
REBN B 17 /B B 10 IR th B IR BRE
AR WHAREMES (B
PHERER) ©

AEBERNHE ARG RFETE
HEHNEREBNBEERE 2
et BRIRERBAELEZHE
(E) NESMHER B EAX
H RGBT 2 EEH R
RFEEIERERE -

BIREREITER  FRRERE
EEERAZSHHERERN R
B -ZBEENEEBRRRESL
Wk R fEim B RETTE - BIF
A0 B B 8 1 FE AR 2 2 BRAS
BRETNBRERE -

At e EEDBERRZBIRIE

RBEE RERBET 2 BRE
TP E MR 2 2R E
AECBRIEEBEAREARERNSE
SHEAMER  RULBRT - A
WERE ek RTS8 2 E i B
gz A EFE - EARKER
BERRERGHIRHRBEE -
PrUERE fa 8 iR 15 2 & /o (E#ERR
BFAX - WHERENED (B
R EHERKREAER
HERREEARI -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 B #& R R M1z

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated income statement because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange translation reserve
(attributable to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting date. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange translation reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments on land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis, except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Income taxes

In respect of the Hong Kong Profits Tax under inquiries by
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”) as
mentioned in note 11, management judgment was required
in assessing the likelihood of success in defending its
position that the income derived was non-Hong Kong
sourced and therefore, was not subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax and no provision for profit tax was made in prior
years. The provision of income taxes was reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Concerning the future costs in handling
the tax disputes, during the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group reached a settlement agreement with the
IRD including interest and penalty in aggregate amount of
approximately HK$32,732,000. Details of which were set
out in note 11.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities from
investment properties that were measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC were held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantively all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model recovered entirely through sale
was rebutted. As a result, the Group continues to recognise
deferred tax liabilities on change in fair value of investment
properties on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of the
properties will be recovered through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment were depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values
involved management’s estimation. The Group assessed
annually the residual value and the useful life of the
property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differed from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate would
be changed in the future period.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

SR BmRME

FESHHE R AT
BEZ2FERIR &)

REBSTHRRTFEAZEEH
o (&)

REYFELEHHE

AT ERAARERAFENK
EMEMEERBERBMS - K
ARAEECEEHNAEEREY
XA BERSAKERTEN
RENERBRBEXHBEREZR
HEMmFEBEEERRTRENE
FrEar@ARo EBENmmMmE
EEATH - Bt REFEASE
BRZFREMETORELEHR A
B ARAREFBEENAAAER
A ENZSREMFRERED
2EE B D ERE M ERRDTK
Moo Bl ARBEBRMEZ
2 BB AR 1B A% 125 18 0 A I B 1R
RERAREVERAEBED R
ERIAAE -

HATHBRRZEERR

NTREBRERZEEZBREZER
W HRE A ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?%%l%
ZHBEBERR  BEBRRKRL
%%l%%ﬂﬁﬂT*%ﬁiE
BEMBEREEHFELHEAHE
ZERER

V=E  BERRETE

ME - BE R RELT REMGE
RpBEE KABRRREMGE
AERFHTE - EXA E8
FHARAKEEIREEE 2
it AEEBENEME  BE

w2 R R EE K AR F
B HEMERLHESLRE
B PAHEREAURFERFEL
e mABGR B RBEK
Aﬁﬁ@‘@) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 B #& R R M1z

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performed ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusted credit limits based on payment
history and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as
determined by the review of their current credit information.
The Group continuously monitored collections and
payments from its customers and maintained a provision
for estimated credit losses based upon its historical
experience and any specific customer collection issues
that it had been identified. Credit losses had historically
been within the Group’s expectations and the Group
would continue to monitor the collections from customers
and maintain an appropriate level of estimated credit
losses. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was approximately HK$251,091,000
(net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$4,212,000) (2011: carrying amount of approximately
HK$51,447,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$4,165,000).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

When there was objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group took into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows were less than
expected, a material impairment loss might arise. As at
31 December 2012, the carrying amount of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables was approximately
HK$15,520,000 (2011: HK$45,020,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Write-down of inventories

The directors of the Company review an aging analysis
at the end of each reporting period, and make allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production. The
management estimates the net realisable value for finished
goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product basis at end of
each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
items. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately HK$11,548,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$nil)
(2011: carrying amount of approximately HK$408,422,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$14,349,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment was
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment are the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In determining the
recoverable amount, use of estimates such as the future
revenue and discount rates is required. As at 31 December
2012, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately HK$49,878,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$53,965,000) (2011:
carrying amount of approximately HK$63,007,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$53,965,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the
fair value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market conditions. In
relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the assumptions used in the valuation have reflected the
current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties being recognised in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of investment properties measured
at fair value at 31 December 2012 was approximately
HK$83,530,000 (2011: HK$76,790,000)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2012, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised on the tax losses and deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$76,778,000
(2011: HK$86,013,000) and HK$62,026,000 (2011:
HK$91,110,000) respectively due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
The directors of the Company determine the deferred
taxation assets based on the enacted or substantially
enacted tax rates and the best knowledge of profit
projections of the Group for coming years during which the
deferred taxation assets are expected to be utilised. The
directors of the Company will review the assumptions and
profit projections by the end of the reporting period.

4.

FESHHE R AT
BEZEZETERE (&)

HHTHBERRZEERR (&)
REYEZ 274 E
RIRE A RE - REME IR
BYEEGEMETZEHEELA
REFE RETARER 4
EMEREZEEFESRETT
SAGET c RIKBHEERSR - A
NEESZEITEE A AR
PEEFRER 2 RR R RIS
R - 2SR 2 28535
RERPERZAEEREME
NREZEH) - )R2012F12H31
H BARBEHEZREMER
Tl & 49 483,530,000/ JT (2011
4 1 76,790,000/ 7T) °

Va2

20129 12A318 © B A K 2k
wFRE TR M - WERTIE
BEARATNBGEREEZZ D 7
#176,778,000% JT (20114 :
86,013,000/ 7t) 62,026,000
#JT (20114 : 91,110,000/5 7T )
WREEHIEELEE - BEFIEE
ENAEREFEARTREE
CHERAGHRERDBRHER
AHEAE - ARRESKHEHEM
FAMEEB/BHBHRE - UARAK
EEENTERRELERIEEE ST
B) A 9 R 2R B AR HA R s ) 7 TEDRI
MNEEMAETEEHBEEE -
RAREEFHNREPRRENZ

SRR Mo H TR
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes convertible bonds disclosed in note 29,
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves. The directors of the Company review the
capital structure on a regular basis. As a part of this review,
the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the associated risks, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group’s capital structure.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 Bt #& i R M1zt

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

EXERER

AEEEREER  ABERASK
BETERENFELEEY
WEBETEFEERMER
ABBIRGEREAREE - NEE
EEREEFERFIE -

AEBE 2 BEREBBENME29
BEZARRES HRe kR
FEBEBURAKNAREA AEIS
o ETERECBITHRAREE
B ARAEZTEHRRAELLE
B ERREEFR IR AR
BEEZEREAKRAREHERLE -
YRt REGEE TR RBAEE
BARERE -

o
SBMIAER

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000

Financial assets ETREE

Loans and receivables (including bank B R GRIE
(BREBTEFIRS)

balances and cash)

FET TAT

1,641,060 1,356,598

Financial liabilities = h=E
At amortised cost big: £ [N

713,034 892,236
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivable from a shareholder, trade and other receivables,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and
convertible bonds. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective Notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by the Group in
currencies other than the entities’ functional currencies.
In addition, certain portion of bank balances and cash,
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

HEREEERERBEK

AEBEZTESRHTABRRERK
—HBRROER - ERERRRE
flo YRR « SRITHEFREE -
FERBR R R B A R IR - PA R
ABRRES - WEEMTAZF
BRERMMERE - BUFEH
TREEEzZRAREBRETSAR
(BEERREMERER) FER
B lomBE SRR o XM
R SRR CBR - BEEE
EENMEEZFRR  AERE
iR B Ut BREUE & 8 1 ©

E¥ER

AEEEHRSEEEAR - B
RRRE R EBAZSERNY
RREEUAINNZEEETHER
REE - WA BT EORITES
KIS~ FEUERR K L At FE MR
TA DA R A BR R e A FE A5 K
RAER ZHEEEB AN

ZEBEEH -
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7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate.

PEEREEE R REE
(#)

E¥mE (&)
TRETAEENHENEE
KRAXZUCHEREEXABNA
HERMEBNEERNINZER
REEEZER -

Renminbi

uUsSD’000 (“RMB”)’000

FEx ARET T
Presented in : 2012 2011 2012 2011
FIRA 201245 20114 20125 20114

Assets BE
Liabilities aE

5562 497 -
50,385 1,000 1,510

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of RMB
and USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
and 0.5% (2011: 5% and 0.5%) increase and decrease
in HK$ against the RMB and USD respectively. 5%
and 0.5% (2011: 5% and 0.5%) are the sensitivity rates
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% and 0.5% (2011: 5% and 0.5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit (2011: decrease in post-
tax loss) where HK$ strengthen 5% and 0.5% (2011: 5%
and 0.5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% and
0.5% (2011: 5% and 0.5%) weakening of HK$ against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit, and the balances below would be
negative.

UsSD
E

2012

20125
HK$’000
FHT

i Mk & 18

Profit or loss

(13)

20114
HK$'000

MBEREEERERBEK
(#)

BRRER (&)

AEBETZEAHARERETE
R o

TRFVNAEEH B TS BILA
REERETLAENEES%N0.5%
(20114 : 5%%0.5%) 2 & R
B ZHBRELRANETEEE
A B T SNE R B 1E R 30 3R 5 B R
BZHRE  REREEERINE
EXRAgeEAZAIEEBAIET
e REDMEREHNALE
ZONBIHEERIEE RRREH
8 45 R BLONIE P & 2 5% 120.5%
(20114F - 5% 5%0.5%) & & 1EH
ZIE A o T Z EEERM
BILHBBEERAE%R05%
(20114 : 5% %0.5%) Ffr & 2 [
Fiig @ F 2 F 8 (20114F = BR &t
BEBZEKE) - MBTLBEBE
B E5%50.5% (20114F : 5%
’0.5%) « #HEERAEKER 2
THYE X zEBEAEEas -

o

RMB
AR
2012
20124
HK$’000
FH

2011 2011

20114
HK$'000
FHIT T

1,458 26 69

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

BEERS ARFE&RZRER
W& RRERRER  SBRED
A3 AN R BB SN [ o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 —Z——44®% 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 445 Bt #& i R M1zt

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

120

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank
balances and is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and loan receivable
from a shareholder. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider other
necessary actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank
balances and is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances and fixed-rate bank deposits
and loan receivable from a shareholder is minimal due to
short-term maturities.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk
attributable to the loan receivable from a shareholder to be
insignificant as the shareholder has good creditworthiness
and the loan has been fully settled subsequent to the end
of reporting period.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

MBEREEERERBE
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R2012%12A31H » AEEBEHGE
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R2011612A31H @ KREERLHE
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Bk WHEBRTFREE A
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 100%
(2011: 100%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2012.

Besides, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 95%
of the total trade receivables as at 31 December 2012
was due from the Group’s largest customer within natural
uranium trading segment. However, the directors of the
Company consider the credit risk to be insignificant as the
major debtor was an intermediate holding company with
good creditworthiness. As at 31 December 2011, trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers and
spread across diverse industries.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

BHEREEEERBUR
(#)

FERR (&)

REBZRMEFTHEERRESD
Eixﬁ%$m¢EvHMmm
F12H31H & Y IR 3k 48 8E100%
(20114 : 100%) °

o - AEEEEEE SRR S
BB Sl 201212 A31H JE
U BR FR 48 38 P O5% T4 B Uk K £ [
RRAMEZEB D ENZAE
PHRIFRIE - A - ARFREER
B ZEEERBIETEKN E
REZNEBAR—HEBRI
SENFEZER AR - R2011F
12A318 ' EREFBEREKZ
BRMEITEERPHRIE

nBET FEERRBR - RA
BRETYBBEREEFLEE
AREERE ZERT LM
FARAEERR AKEH
EERBREARKREE -

RBESER

REERDESRARE  AEH
EENMEREeRRSEFEEBSE
FREEBRST R ZKF A
BAAREEz2ERBERER
ERBTE -

3R F P AN SR 1B 92 R 199 E IE SR AR
RZETEERABBHRTAHOE
HIH - TRDEBRASEARE
BZRFPANESRABIRME
RenEmE BRMNEXEAS
HReng - WA BRERTY B
B RMREEDARE HEE
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. HBEREEBERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESRR (&)
Liquidity risk tables THEE 2R R 5)F
Weighted
average Carrying Total
interest amountat  Less than undiscounted
rate 31 December 1 year 1-5 years cash flows
M12A31R REEHR
MELHFE  ZREE 15/ 1-568 HBHERERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T SR S
2012 20125
Non-derivative financial FITELRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables AR R N/A 219,621 219,621 - 219,621
Hit R zua
Convertible bonds AR ES 5.43% 493,413 - 600,000 600,000
713,034 219,621 600,000 819,621
2011 20114
Non-derivative financial FTELRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ERERR N/A 424,753 424,753 - 424,753
HioEf50a
Convertible bonds wERES 543% 467,483 - 600,000 600,000
892,236 424,753 600,000 1,024,753
Fair value ARE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are cMEEREMBEZANEBETD
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing BEAREERAAMRIIBIESR
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. ENWERE -
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RABEERR  HREHKANE
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded RAVBERERIECZEHEER
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements cREaBEZEAERE R EM
approximate their fair values due to their immediate or b BE R AR R E R
short-term maturities. FIH] -
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TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8.

INCOME

Turnover represents amount received and receivable from

sales of pharmaceutical and food products net of returns,

discounts allowed and sales related taxes, sales of natural

uranium and gross rental income during the year. Revenues

recognised during the year are as follows:

EXRERAEMEE

A

LEBRFANKRESE 25T
- HEEEHERRKAHEEER
KR Mz W EYRRIE - XA
HEHE  URBESWBARE -
RAFEEER 2 WSMT

2012 2011
20124 20114F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
Turnover =2
Sales of goods HEEM 1,225,329 367,243
Gross rental income (note a) WALz (Hista) 6,958 5,483
1,232,287 372,726
Other operating income HobZE A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 24,594 5911
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HESEEERE 2
investment = 13
Government grant (note b) AT R, (MI5ED) = 411
Loan interest income from a shareholder ~ —&RRE 2 EFF U 5,479 -
Net exchange gain S B ES 174 10,059
Net gain on disposal of property, HEDE  BMEELEZ
plant and equipment Wiss 358 19,289 11,804
Write-back of long outstanding payables — ##[El& Biz < 2 fE 201A - 3,554
Recovery of indemnified taxation (note c) Uk EISAERIE (FizFc) 2,960 -
Others HAth 1,759 -
54,255 31,752
Total revenues Pl 1,286,542 404,478
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8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8. HEEHERHMEHEWA
INCOME (Continued) (4%
Notes: FdaE
(a) An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows: (a) AEEZHS KA FEL TR
T~
2012 2011
20125 20114F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR F&T
Gross rental income LU ALBEE 6,958 5,483
Less: Outgoings (included in cost of sales) B AR S (R ASEERAN) (1,220) (931)
Net rental income AW AFEE 5,738 4,552
(b) For the year ended 31 December 2011, the amount (b) RE Z2011F12A8318 1L &
represented an one-off government grant for the Group’s B FEESEENETFEERE
contribution to the environmental improvement in Sichuan B B )| B BRIE S T fE
Province, the PRC, in prior years. BB — R EERAT AL o
(c) For the year ended 31 December 2012, tax liabilities (c) #H ZE20129F12A318 I F
incurred before 2002 were recovered from the then [E + F2002%F A E & &9 i 7%
controlling shareholders of the Company pursuant to the B &R ¥ B Hi 200241 430
deed of indemnity dated 30 January 2002. Details are set BOBERZRZE BEEARQ
out in note 33(b). AERIERREBE - 5515

K FE33(b) ©
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified by
the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

a) pharmaceutical and food segment engages in
the selling, distributing and manufacturing of
pharmaceutical and food products;

b) property investment segment engages in leasing,
developing and selling of office premises and
residential properties; and

c) natural uranium trading segment engages in trading
of natural uranium.

2 EER

REBRHRERD B RKZBRFE
BRMEBLERRENEEH
TERENEMEPRARNK
e EmkRFEE =2
BIERRE BN KL DB E
BA AR E R R HEDED

(b) YEREDHEMEE %
ERLERREREED
E 3

(c) RAMHMEH DB e XA
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2012

DEEE (&)
DI R

TREJNANEE A HEREED
#z Yes MEE DT

BZ2012F128318 L EE

Natural

Pharmaceutical Property uranium

and food investment trading Total

BERREMm MERE RXAHES st

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FEx FEx FTExT FEx

Turnover EE ] 57,836 6,958 1,167,493 1,232,287
Segment profit (loss) DERER (BE) (82,153) 9,111 153,411 80,369
Other income and gains =N e 52,496
Central administration costs — F S #7Ek (36,422)
Finance costs BE A (25,930)
Profit before taxation S TNyl 70,513

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Pharmaceutical
and food

EZmLRm
HK$'000
TR

HE2011F12831HILEE

Natural
Property uranium
investment trading
MERE RRHES 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT TAT TAT

Turnover EERE 367,243 5,483 - 372,726
Segment loss D EbEE (215,869) (25,339) (480) (241,688)
Other income and gains H AU R ez 50,135
Central administration costs — HRITEA A (32,796)
Finance costs & A (10,524)
Loss before taxation KA RIE R (234,873)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. NHMEHR #)

Segment revenues and results (Continued) DENEE R EE (E)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are KEDH 2z FETBORARE H
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in RISz EETHE MR - 5 &6
note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned w A (E8) ?‘aﬁ%ﬁa‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiiﬁfﬁﬂ
by (loss from) each segment without allocation of central (EEERE)  WRDBEHRITIH
administration costs, directors’ salaries, other income and A~ EEHE - Halg AR
gains and finance costs. This is the measure reported to mREERAR - TR B EIR
the Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource RERBEFGRNERERITERSE
allocation and performance assessment. 2 e

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TREVAEE IR A WG REE
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: DED T2 BEERBE
Segment assets DESEE

2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Pharmaceutical and food R RRM 93,078 191,323
Property investment YIERE 87,833 81,205
Natural uranium trading RARME 5 240,596 391,593

421,507 664,121
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEARIEE 1,390,963 1,280,913
Total assets BEMRE 1,812,470 1,945,034
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HHMEHR #®)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEHEEREE (&)
Segment liabilities HEEE

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Pharmaceutical and food ZEmRRm 17,652 34,786

Property investment MEKRE 1,216 573

Natural uranium trading KARHE 5 198,969 391,593

217,837 426,952

Unallocated corporate liabilities KB ARIAE 537,346 481,215

Total liabilities BEERE 755,183 908,167

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and HERDHEERDEFEZER

allocating resources between segments: HBEEME :

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other J BREEW—ZRREHER
than loan receivable from a shareholder, income tax AR EFRISH - RITETF
recoverable, bank balances and cash and other ERe - UREARAR
assets for corporate use including property, plant CHMEE BEWE-
and equipment and other receivables. TR 55 T2 3% 18 DA Je HL Ath JiE Ui

RIBEH BEEHDE

kA
EREDHE -

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments . BRIEFMFTISH - IEERIE
other than income tax payable, deferred tax BfE - AIRREHFULESE
liabilities, convertible bonds and certain other FHMERKRIEIN - FTH
payables. BEHIREELEDE °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

2012

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Addition to property, plant and

SR BRERDH
BERCIHARE:

REME - BERRE

Pharmaceutical
and food

ERRRS
HK$'000
TER

9.

Property
investment
NERE
HK$'000
TR

DEER (@)
Hih o EER
20125

Natural
uranium
Trading
RAHES
HK$'000
TR

Unallocated
RAE
HK$’000
FAL

[:]]
@5t
HK$’000
FET

equipment 2,796 27 241 1,479 4,543
Depreciation and amortisation ERE 6,328 250 12 207 6,797
Changes in fair value of RENEN R EE

investment property - (5,853) - = (5,853)
Net gain on disposal of property,  HEWE  BER

plant and equipment B e (18) - = (19.211)  (19,289)
Write-off of inventories WHEE 3,494 - - - 3,494
Reversal of write-down of BERREE

inventories (1,154) - - - (1,154)
Research and development costs T2 2 1,211 - - - 1,211
Operating lease rental on land THREFZ

and buildings LERERe 681 - 522 3,693 4,896
Amounts regularly provided to  EHBEREHTERM

the Chief Executive Officer ERMBERBER

but not included in the PBERRIHEE

measure of segment profit FEZRE:

or loss or segment assets:

Interest expense FBRE% - - - 25,930 25,930
Income tax expense it - - - 51,866 51,866
Bank interest income SRITRIBIA - - - (24,594) (24,594)
Loan interest income from —HRERMETFIE

a shareholder WA - - - (5,479) (5,479)
Recovery of indemnified taxation W &8 - - - (2,960) (2,960)
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9.

130

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

2011

Pharmaceutical
and food
EQREM
HK$'000
THET

9.

Property
investment
NERE
HK$'000
TET

DEEE (&)

Hivp BER (42)

20114

Natural
uranium
Tradmg

HK$ 000
TEL

Unallocated
A
HK$'000
%/BTE

Total
@5t
HK$'000
TAL

Amounts included in the HESE e

measure of segment profit PHEER

or loss or segment assets: BEAFE
Addition to property, plant and REME - BEREE

equipment 8,102 - - 730 8,832
Impairment loss recognised in REEHEER

respect of goodwill 52,355 - - - 52,355
Depreciation and amortisation meELEH 10,227 249 - 38 10,514
Changes in fair value of RENEZ AR EED

investment property - 24,438 - - 24,438
Net gain on disposal of property,  HEWE - BER

plant and equipment R TS (11,804) - - - (11.804)
Impairment loss recognised in ERNE  BER

respect of property, plant and LERERR

equipment 72,001 - - - 72,001
Impairment loss recognised in EREWETREEE

respect of trade receivables 85 - - - 85
Write-down of inventories WAEE 14,808 - - - 14,808
Write-off of inventories WEEE 5,957 - - - 5,957
Write-off of other receivables HHE B IE 1,887 - - - 1,887
Write-back of long outstanding BEREAER

payables F‘Eﬁ%ﬂﬁ (3,554) - - - (3,554)
Impairment loss recognised in REVEENESSE

respect of intangible assets 2,558 - - - 2,558
Research and development costs ~ AfFEE AR AR 1,820 - - - 1,820
Operating lease rental on land THREF2EE

and buildings HEHE 1,290 - - 127 1,417
Amounts regularly providedto ~ EHREFHTEREM

the Chief Executive Officer ERBLREERS

but not included in the PRERIWEET

measure of segment profit BZHE:

or loss or segment assets:
Interest expense MERZ - - - 10,624 10,524
Income tax credit Fisthigs - - - (3,417) (3,417)
Bank interest income RITFEMA - - - (5911) (5.911)
Gain on disposal of held-fortrading  HEFEEERE 2

investment g - - - (13) (13)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAR 2 - - - (30,599) (30,599)

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (“HK”)
and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets.

DEEE (&)
i E R
REBMMLBANEERTE -

BRASERBINEEFHRA
MEHMEREBELEMAMEZ
5 BEAASEIERBDEENE
HERRBEEEMENLIZS) -

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMBEFHEA ERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
2012%F 20114F 201245 20114F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHET FHET
HK &BE 1,167,493 - 2,172 12,880
PRC Fh 64,794 372,726 151,253 147,157
1,232,287 372,726 = 153,425 160,037
Information about major customers FREXERFZEHR

Revenue from customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

Customer A’

BEFEH

BEZ?

Customer B?

VAT #0512 B 1A A8 B 4F [ A AR
SEHEELEBEBIORNE,Z
YA

2012 2011
201245 20114
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
N/A3 72,101
1,167,493 N/A3

! Revenue from pharmaceutical and food segment

2 Revenue from natural uranium trading segment

8 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total sales of the Group.

! REBERRRBDEZWA

2 RERAHE 552 WA

8 FEFE R UR ANE 8 75 (h 2 £ [ §H
EHBEER10%
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MERA
2012 2011
2012%F 20114F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest expenses on: THFIE 2 MEME
— bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly — ARAFRNEHEEY
repayable within five years IRITIEERBEX = 3,305
— imputed interest charged on convertible — — A[MRES 2 (HEF| B
bonds (note 29) Fsz (PiEE29) 25,930 9,217
— discounted bills of exchange without — BBRECAMRESR
recourse = 161
Total borrowing costs BEKALREE 25,930 12,683
Less: amounts capitalised into properties  Ji : REEAYEIEE &b
under development IR = (2,159)
25,930 10,524
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 BHZE2011F12A31R LFEXRA
December 2011 arose on the general borrowing pool and —REBZEHEEXEEERL
were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 6.73% I ¥z & Kt F %£6.73% (2012
(2012: nil) per annum to expenditure on properties under F ) FFABEBTYERT -
development.
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 1. BB (ER)
2012 2011
20125 20114
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Hong Kong Profits Tax HENEH
— current year — KREE 22,572 -
— underprovision in prior years — BAEFERETE 26,357 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HR B {b S FTIS AR
— current year — KFEE 185 -
— underprovision in prior year — BEFERETE 878 -
49,992 -
Deferred tax (note 30) IRIEFIE (M93E30) 1,874 (3,417)
51,866 (3,417)
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1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Hong Kong
Profits Tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group’s income neither arises
in, nor is derived from Hong Kong.

In current and prior years, the Hong Kong Profits Tax
amounting to approximately HK$34,041,000 of a subsidiary
of the Company in respect of the years of assessment
2000/01 to 2005/06 were under inquiries by the IRD. The
Group lodged objections against the assessments and
the IRD had held over the payment of the profits tax and
the total amount of approximately HK$15,791,000 (2011:
HK$11,791,000) tax reserve certificates was purchased
and recorded as income tax recoverable in the statement
of financial position.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
reached a settlement agreement with the IRD on the
amounts of Hong Kong Profits Tax relating to the years
of assessment 2000/01 to 2011/12 for a total sum of
approximately HK$26,357,000 together with interest and
penalty of approximately HK$6,376,000. The tax liability of
approximately HK$26,357,000 and interest and penalty of
approximately HK$6,376,000 were recognised as income
tax expense and administrative expense for the year ended
31 December 2012, respectively. Pursuant to the deed of
indemnity dated 30 January 2002, sum incurred before
2002 of approximately HK$2,960,000 was indemnified and
settled by the then controlling shareholders (note 33(b)).
The remaining amounts borne by the Group in total of
approximately HK$29,773,000 was settled by tax reserve
certificates in sum of approximately HK$15,791,000 and
cash of approximately HK$13,982,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

11.

FrEdi<ih (%) &)

HE2012F12A31B tFE - &
& F 5 B IR AT E R BRI A
16.5% M T K&+ E -

HZE2011F12A31HILEFE ' A
RAEB ZWANIEEAEE
LIRABE MU ERGE I
WMERAEHBEFSTIEME -

RAFERUNEFE BHER
(B BEARARFT —HWBA
A]7A2000/01E2005/06:EH FE 2
BEENER - % K Bi334,041,000
BT AEEEHZEIRIRELR
H ERREEAMFNER K
NAEIE BB %8 4915,791,000/8 7T
(20114F : 11,791,000/8 7T) 2 F&
% - Witk RERE BT Z
AT EFTISEL ©

HZ2012F12A831HIEFE - &K
% B 2 7 B 5£2000/0122011/12
RABFE2BEBNESHAEELD
26,357,000/ 7T & [A A & K 5
3K #96,376,0007%8 7T #E X 1 7 1%
o B A (& 426,357,000 JT
# [/ F) B & & 3Kk 496,376,000/
LR E E2012F12A318 L F &
HRABMEBMAIRITHAEL -
B 4% 7200291 A30H 5] 32 2
BRFRZIE - R20024F A = £
) #72,960,000/% JT 15 & B 19
2 AR AR 5RO B N B H 2 A (B &
33(b)) - & Z=2012912A31H 1t
FE - AASERENSEAS LY
29,773,000/ 7TH + #915,791,000
BILARRIASEE - 4913,982,000
BB ST -
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11.

134

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued)

Besides, in current and prior years, the Hong Kong
Profits Tax amounting to approximately HK$26,849,000 of
another subsidiary of the Company in respect of the years
of assessment 2002/03 to 2005/06 were under inquiries
by the IRD. The Group lodged an objection against the
assessments and the IRD had held over the payment
of the profits tax and the total amount of approximately
HK$300,000 tax reserve certificates was purchased and
recorded as income tax recoverable in the statement of
financial position. During the year ended 31 December
2012, the tax reserve certificate was refunded as the IRD
agreed that the income derived by this subsidiary was non-
Hong Kong sourced.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Certain PRC subsidiaries were either in loss-making
position for the current and the previous years or had
sufficient tax losses brought forward from previous years
to offset the estimated assessable income for the year and
accordingly did not have any provision for PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the current and previous years.

The subsidiary operating in Macau is exempted from the
income tax in Macau for the current and previous years.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

11.

FrE®i<t (BER) @)

N RAFERAAEFE -
RERARRAS —EHBRRR
2002/03%E2005/06 A F B 2 &
BRET - % R 526,849,000
BT ASBEEHZETHIRED
R¥ - ERBEEENFET
RN A2 HE B #EH49300,0007%8 7T
RS UREASAEVBHK
ME AW EIFTER - B ZE2012
F12A31BIEEE - ARBRA
EXRAZHEBRRHWALIEE
HARI - BUtRERAESRD o

BIEPBRDEMBGRE (DR
BRE]D REERED - B
BRARNRMEFE 2K B25% °

RAEERBEFE  HTHE
MEBAREREERMRR  H&EE
BAEFE 2RI EE R A HE
FARMERTWA - B RA
FREMBEFE L EEA P EE
EFEHHRE -

RAFERBEFE  ®RFAK
BZMBRRERLRPIASEH o
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1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued)  11.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the

BVI for the current and previous years.

The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be

reconciled to the profit (loss) before taxation per the

consolidated income statement as follows:

FrE®i<t (ER) @)

RERSHEREABREIES
(TBVI]) ZZRRZER  AEH
RAFE FBEFEBAMBNR
SRS MBVIFIEH

AEFEMREHRIE (KR) 254
Was RPN ATE A (B51R) &
RN

2012 2011
20124 20114

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Profit (loss) before taxation

BrtATE A (B518)

70,513 (234,873)

Tax calculated at rates applicable to
profits in the respective tax jurisdiction
concerned

Effect of tax exemption granted to a

RARNSE R AERERR

il o ey i W A

11,005 (51,945)

—FERPIM B A R ER R HIA

Macau subsidiary IE 546 452
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBIMA Z B2

tax purpose (7,683) (8,632)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for — RA[FF S 7 Fifs 2

tax purpose 14,298 16,025
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B L R ARER 2 FHSEE K&

tax losses and deductible IR R = 2R

temporary difference - (576)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible RHERI TS BB N AT HR i

temporary difference not recognised ERBBEE 6,465 41,259
Underprovision in prior years BETFEREETR 27,235 -
Income tax expense (credit) for the year REEREHZE (ER) 51,866 (3,417)

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 30.

IR IAFIR NI EES0 ©
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12. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 12. FNEEER (EE)

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#E  TAT

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived  AREEHEF (1) 23K

at after charging (crediting): (Gt A) T3I&I8 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BiNELEE 60 333
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BT RERNAENRE
on land use rights 397 723
Auditors’ remuneration ZEaME 1,421 1,498
Cost of inventories recognised as an R AR Rt AHE AR
expense and included in cost of sales HFEHEKA
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEFENEREE 1,027,497 243,062
Write-off of inventories MEFEE 3,494 5,057
Reversal of write-down of inventories BEMORFE (H3E23)
(note 23) (1,154) -
Write-down of inventories WRFE = 14,808
1,029,837 263,827
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEMERETE
equipment 6,340 9,458
Impairment loss recognised in TR E W BR FURE E5 18
respect of trade receivables (Gt ATTHRAR)
(included in administrative expenses) - 85
Impairment loss in respect of mEEREBEERE
intangible assets (included in Gt ATTHRAR)
administrative expenses) - 2,558
Operating lease rental on land and buildings +# RIEF 2 K LHERS 4,896 1,417
Research and development costs 1N 1,211 1,820
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) BT (BIFEEHS)
(note 15) (PffF5E15) 51,606 120,124
Write-off of other receivables il S L FE W R IR
(included in administrative expenses) (GTATTE R ) - 1,887
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13.

14.

DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended

31 December 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of the reporting period (2011: nil).

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per

share attributable to the owners of the Company is based

on the following data:

Profit (loss)

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company for the
purposes of basic and diluted

B (F1)

AEEREANEERT
(B18) 2 RRRHEA A
FRIEAFEa M (E18)

BRE
HE2012F 128318 tFE I &
IRENERRERE - MERS

HEEE R UK ERS RET
A% B (20114F « #&) o

BREFN (BFR)

ARBEAANEBETREN L
BRN (BR) R TIBURE

=
Ean

2012
20125

2011
20114
HK$'000
T

HK$’000
FEx

earnings (loss) per share 18,660 (229,858)
Number of shares KRHBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary st &ESREAREFN (BE) 2

shares for the purpose of basic TR HNE 19 2

earnings (loss) per share 3,332,586,993 2,229,036,061

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares in respect of share options

BRI R BB e

I8

37,842 -

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings (loss) per share

AAEESREERN (BR) 2
BB T8

3,332,624,835 2,229,036,061
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14. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 14. BRER (BE) @)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the computation HZE2012F12A31HIEFE © 51
of diluted earnings per share does not assume conversion EERBEERFRIZERED
of convertible bonds as their exercise would result in an BMREHFEER  AREKRAIR
increase in earnings per share. IREHHEHEREF) EF -

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the computation of HZE2011F12A31HIEFE » &5t
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of EEREFERNRITEERS
the Company’s outstanding share options and convertible N E R ARITE BB AR R AT AR
bonds as their exercise would result in a decrease in loss BEHETE ERBEBNITER
per share. BYEREERD -

15. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 15. EIRK (GiEEEMS)
EMOLUMENTS)

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TAT

Salaries, allowances, other benefits and e - REL - HafEFI RIEAT

bonus 49,514 60,931
Retirement benefit schemes contribution RGBT 2 2,092 4,465
Termination benefits (note) BOEFIEE (PR - 54,728

51,606 120,124

Note: Due to the expiry of food hygiene license for “Osteoform Mz ARIENEEaERES
Compound Calcium Amino Acid Chelate Food Capsules” %H ﬁ ml(T&n]) 28
(“Osteoform”) and an integration of production line, the MEETAECIBARES
Group had laid off excessive staff and incurred termination EER NEBECE®RERS
benefits of approximately HK$44,228,000 during the year BT th’\%iiZOﬂimﬂ
ended 31 December 2011. In addition, the Group had paid SIBIEFEEAKIENGLN
to the ex-directors for early resignation of approximately 44,228,000/ 7T © AN - AN
HK$10,500,000 during the year ended 31 December 2011. REZE2011F12H31H L&

F [ 2 X I £910,500,0007%
TTREESERIERHEZ
A -
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15.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes which are available to qualified employees. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the subsidiaries in independently administered funds.
Monthly contributions made by the subsidiaries are
calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under the relevant
requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in
the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Company in this country
participate in respective government retirement benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the Schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions made to
the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the
PRC are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent
gross contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated
by the relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined
contribution schemes operated in Hong Kong.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in note 31.

15.

BTIRA (BRESEHE)
(#)

BENMBRARIREEARERH
TEBHERTE - ZFT8I2E
ERMNBRARAZEENBILERE
EeAOPRABAE MBRARZE
BRI RE B EFTRI A A
AR 2ETAD L E
EE (BERERAmME) fHE -

RIEFEERAERIRL > A
Az P EME QRS EZARNT
RAKEFGE (TZEFHE]) - B
It ZEMBRARARZ SRS
FHER - WBRNEERREEZ
BAKAER o Mm% FREIFEH 2
TR R BR PI A T AR A &
AR 2 BFEBEDLFE - R E
BERZERAERERKEERE
N2 2 BURNER o NEE L&
FiE BT ERREZ TS
FBIEL PR R o

R ARAE I E B R B A5 B [ i
TEEBEREFZZEEINA
EREBEBEEZ EBEHKEE
2 R -

RABMAERE TR EBRE
Z R EEN MRS -
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
twelve (2011: seventeen) directors and the chief

executive were as follows:

16. EENEEFMA L2

B =

(a)

EERTETHAEHS
B EMN+ =% (2011
Fr+ERH) EERETE
TBRABZMEWMT -

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE2012F12A31HLLFE

Other emoluments

140

Hittfe
Salaries, Retirement
ETEN S benefit
and other Discretionary  schemes
Fees benefits bonus contribution Total
¥4 28 BRER
e RHEMEF WA SRR @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TEx TEx TER TEx
Executive directors: HiITEE :
He Zuyuan' ! - 1,414 380 12 1,806
Li Xianli® Z3RVE - 612 173 7 792
Li Zhengguang* R - 400 - - 400
Zheng Xiaowei? ¢ =R - 38 - - 38
Non-executive directors: FHRTEE
Yu Zhiping FET 200 - - - 200
Wei Qiyan HHe 150 - - - 150
Jin Yunfep® HERE 75 - - - 75
Huang Jianming® HEHP 75 - - - 75
Chen Zhiyu* BrEF 75 198 - - 273
Zheng Xiaowei? B 37 - - - 37
Independent non-executive  BUHHITEE
directors:
Ling Bing EE 120 - - - 120
Qiu Xianhong Bk 120 - - - 120
Huang Jinsong B 120 - - - 120
972 2,662 553 19 4,206
! Mr. He Zuyuan was also the Chief Executive Officer ! AIETTEETTAARRTNEE

of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by him

as the Chief Executive Officer.

2 Re-designated from non-executive director to
executive director on 15 March 2012

8 Appointed on 5 July 2012

4 Resigned on 5 July 2012

Discretionary bonus for the year ended 31
December 2012 was determined with reference
to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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3
4

WITE  EXAEEREND
e BEEBITIEAERE
TEMNBBOHS -
M2012E315B MEHTTE
FRATERNTES -
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 16. EEREEHFMALZ

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued) <& 2

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) ESBERIETHAEME
(Continued) (&
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE2011FE12A31HILFE

Other emoluments

Officer of the Company before his resignation on
18 August 2011 and his emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by him
as the Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. He Zuyuan was also the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company since 18 August 2011 and his
emoluments disclosed above included those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive
Officer.

Hioe
Salaries, Retirement
allowances Payments benefit
and other for early schemes
Fees benefits  resignation  contribution Total
Feo 2l REEE RAEN
e RAMER ZEE  EEER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT THT THT THT
Executive directors: HITEFE -
Liu James Jin’ 2z - 264 1,500 8 1,772
Xu Xiaofan' B - 264 1,500 - 1,764
Huang Zemin' HER - 264 1,500 - 1,764
Li Ke! Faft - 264 1,500 - 1,764
Chen Zhiyu? * BETF2 - 270 - - 270
Guo Lin' By - 264 1,500 8 1,772
He Zuyuan®5 [EkiEbe - 352 - - 352
Li Zhengguang® FEKRe - 297 - - 297
Non-executive directors: HIHTEE -
Zheng Xiaowe® g 56 - - - 56
Yu Zhiping® KL 74 - - - 74
Wei Qiyan® BHEe 56 - - - 56
Chen Zhiyu? 5T 50 132 - - 182
Independent non-executive BB TEE
directors:
Lee Kwong Yiu' FER 80 - 1,100 - 1,180
Lui Tin Nang' EPN:2 80 - 1,100 - 1,180
Chong Cha Hwa' RRE 80 - 800 - 880
Ling Bing® AR 44 - - - 44
Qiu Xianhong? g 44 - - - 44
Huang Jinsong® B 44 - - - 44
608 2,371 10,500 16 13,495
1 Resigned on 18 August 2011 ! MR2011568 A 18 A BT
2 Re-designated from executive director to 2 MR2011F8A18HMAITES
non-executive director on 18 August 2011 AT AEIENITES
Appointed on 18 August 2011 201148 18 HEEE
Mr. Chen Zhiyu was also the Chief Executive B EFLEER20119E8818H

BHERMAERNTE » £X
ERBERENNMEE BIEE
[EITIERERFHITE BN
e -

fAItA T A R201168H18H
EASEFENTE - EXAE
BREMNNMECBIERETT
TER B RHAT B H BT 6 B
%o
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 16. EEREREFMA L2
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued) <& 2
(b)  Individuals with highest emoluments (b) EEFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments RAEBREESHHA
in the Group, one (2011: five) was director and the T —% CoONMFE: R
chief executive of the Company whose emoluments H) BEARREERER
are included in the disclosures in note 16(a) above. TBRAE A& B L £
The emoluments of the remaining four (2011: nil) b sE16(a)F E L IR EE o
individuals were as follows: Hepmmz @A (20114 -
/) e -

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT

Salaries, allowances and e A NREMRT

other benefits 4,736 -
Discretionary bonus [ EREFAN 450 -
Retirement benefit schemes RN FFT S

contribution 9 -

5,195 -
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Individuals with highest emoluments (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

16. EEREESFMA L2
M€ )

(b)

1,000,001/ 7L E

Individuals

EEHMAL (&)

BENMESEATHE
e

2012 2011
20124

20114
Number of Number of
individuals

AE A

1,500,000/ 7T 4 -
One of the four individuals with the highest ZNEREFMALAF

emoluments was appointed as director during
the year ended 31 December 2012. His total
emoluments as the capacity of director and staff of
the Company was within the band of HK$1,000,001
to HK$1,500,000.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to
all directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012. During the year ended
31 December 2011, the Group paid approximately
HK$10,500,000 (2012: nil) as compensation for
early resignation to the directors of the Company.
No directors of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012.

(c)

H A — AR E 22012
F12A31B L FEE &
TrREZ - HEAAR
REEMNEBETITHME R
¥ f£1,000,00178 T &
1,500,000/ LAY & E A o

REZE2011F K20124F
12A31BIEFE K&
B Em AR AT ES
IR EEaTHATZA
Bie - YERRSIINAZR N
AREE R 2 52E) - REE
2011F12A31H LG E -
AEEERAAREEL
4310,500,000/% 7T (2012
FE) ERIEREER 2
& - REZE2011FE %2012
F12A31BLFE  HE
RABEEHELR BN
EEAME -
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17.

144

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREEE
Technical
know-how
HK$'000
FAT
cosT A
At 1 January 2011 201141818 17,889
Exchange realignment b 5, B 1,062
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries HEME A R IR (16,051)
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12A31H 2,900
Exchange realignment [ 5 32
At 31 December 2012 A201212H31H 2,932
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT  Z:H# 45 K mi{E
At 1 January 2011 R201141 418 14,861
Exchange realignment M 5, B 877
Provided for the year REF F A 333
Impairment loss recognised in the year FAERBEBE 2,558
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HERE QR (16,051)
At 31 December 2011 2011612 H431H 2,578
Exchange realignment M 5, B 28
Provided for the year REFHAE 60
At 31 December 2012 M2012%12H31H 2,666
CARRYING VALUES fRmE
At 31 December 2012 7A20125F12831H 266
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12A31H 322

Technical know-how has finite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors
of the Company conducted a review of the Group’s
intangible assets and determined that several intangible
assets were impaired due to cessation of production of
certain pharmaceutical and food products. Accordingly,
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,558,000 (2012: nil)
was recognised in respect of intangible asset.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

EERMABEERAERF
B RAFHAEREENE -

RE Z2011F128318 ILFE -
APRESENAEEZETLE
E REAGTERERRBER
FEMBHZEELEERE -
It - EREREERRBEBELY
2,558,000/ 7T (20124 : f&) °
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. Y% - BERRHE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
Land and improve-  Plant and Motor  and office
buildings ments  machinery vehicles  equipment Total
HENF B REB
IHREF % BERES RE  RBARME -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THI T THT THT THT THT
COosT A&
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1A18 93,797 7,959 200,264 14,288 11,534 327,842
Exchange realignment 5 HE 3,725 9 11,990 755 580 17,145
Additions AE 4530 1,724 412 1,563 603 8,832
Disposals HE (14,111) (4,770) (9,601) (3,391) (875) (32,748)
Derecognised on HERBLA
disposal of IR
subsidiaries (26,886) - (122,677) (1,281) (2,454) (153,298)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A31H 61,055 5,008 80,388 11,934 9,388 167,773
Exchange realignment S 700 62 907 133 101 1,903
Additions B - 196 353 2,265 1,729 4543
Disposals e (13,989) - - (2,326) (2512) (18,827)
At 31 December 2012 12012512A318 47,766 5,266 81,648 12,006 8,706 155,392
ACCUMULATED i ERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011 201151418 14,544 7170 110,322 12,993 8,674 153,703
Exchange realignment 5 415 61 6,096 700 383 7,655
Provided for the year REERE 3,931 524 3,501 535 967 9,458
Impairment losses BHAREER
recognised 30,886 - 40,325 35 755 72,001
Eliminated on disposals HERYHE (2,650) (4,770) (9,334) (2,449) (590) (19,793)
Eliminated on HERBARE
disposal of HiH
subsidiaries (14,645) - (100,081) (1,186) (2,346) (118,258)
At 31 December 2011 HR011F12A31H 32,481 2,985 50,829 10,628 7,843 104,766
Exchange realignment R 362 15 701 113 34 1,225
Provided for the year KEERHE 1,768 788 2,143 871 770 6,340
Eliminated on disposals HERBLHE (2,302) - - (2,142) (2.373) (6.817)
At 31 December 2012 M2012512A31R 32,309 3,788 53,673 9,470 6,274 105,514
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2012 12012512831 15,457 1,478 27975 2,536 2,432 49,878
At 31 December 2011 H2011E12A31H 28,574 2,023 29,559 1,306 1,545 63,007

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 =& — —F 4

145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 435 Bf iR R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W%¥ - MERSE &)
(Continued)
The carrying values of properties shown above comprise: Lty REERRE

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TAET

Land in Hong Kong: REEZ T -

Long lease FHIE = 12,007

Land outside Hong Kong: REBHIN T3, -

Medium-term lease RHEATRE 15,457 16,567
15,457 28,574

The above items of property, plant and equipment are it - BERFREEE IR

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates BESEZATFERGFENE :

per annum:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the term of HETHR RIEE F 540

buildings the lease or 40 years BF FoUAREHE
R
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the term of MEMEERE HHEFHHSF -
the lease or 5 years NG E B

Plant and machinery 2.5% to 20% 7 R s 25%Z20%

Motor vehicles 20% R 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 27% B KER  10%Z27%

office equipment /N

Notes: MizE -

(a) At 31 December 2011, the carrying values of the Group’s (a) 34‘2011%12)5] 318 BB A
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for SEERZBRITHEETER
the banking facilities granted to the Group amounted to EEME - BELRRESH
approximately HK$1,656,000 (2012: nil). #91,656,000/8 7T (20124 :

&) o
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - WEKRRE #)

19.

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors
of the Company conducted a review of the Group’s
manufacturing assets and determined that a number of
property, plant and equipment were impaired, due to
the expiry of food hygiene license for Osteoform and an
integration of production line which resulted in the idleness
of certain property, plant and equipment. Accordingly,
impairment losses of approximately HK$30,886,000 (2012:
nil), HK$40,325,000 (2012: nil) and HK$790,000 (2012:
nil) respectively were recognised in respect of land and
buildings, plant and machinery and other assets, which
were used in the pharmaceutical and food segment.
The directors of the Company assessed the recoverable
amounts based on the fair values less costs to sell,
determined by reference to the market prices for similar
assets.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BSE - (&)

(b) MNE E2011412A318 1 F
E ARBERRMAKEY
BUEEE  RAERNLNIRR
FEHFA BN ENEA
ESGMERETYE  BEL
HEHE EmMZEDME-
WEREEDHE- Bt
ERARERLRRADIHZ
THREF - WE RSN
N H & E 5 B R R E B
8 4930,886,0005 T (2012
4 4E) - 40,325,000 T
(20124 : &) 790,000/
JL (20124 @ #) - A QG E
FEERDAEREHEE KA
(Z2BEEEENTSE) WU
A AU El S 58 o

19. REYHE

HK$'000
TAT

FAIR VALUE NI

At 1 January 2011 R2011F1A1H 95,409
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss :TE:ﬁnEEwZ’D\fMEHQ‘ (24,438)
Exchange realignment T H 22X 5,819
At 31 December 2011 720115124318 76,790
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss ERERER 2D EILM 5,853
Exchange realignment PE A §E 2 887
At 31 December 2012 A2012512831H 83,530

Notes:

(a) The carrying value of investment properties shown above
were situated in the PRC and held under medium-term
lease.

(b) All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
were measured using the fair value model and were
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

G

(a) BREEZREMEDILR
TE RETHEERSA -

(b)y AEEFREREBELEHEERE
PABRERAE & sl (E & A2 (E %
Z%%%ﬁﬁﬂu@ﬁ@@fﬁ
B YN BERARINEREY
o,
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) The fair value of the investment properties of the Group
as at 31 December 2011 and 2012 has been arrived at on
an open market value basis assuming sale with existing
tenancies by using the income approach by capitalising
the net rental income receivable from the existing tenancies
and the reversionary rental income potentials. The
valuations were carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”), who had among its
staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued.

(d) At 31 December 2011, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties pledged as security for the banking
facilities granted to the Group amounted to approximately
HK$68,585,000 (2012: nil).

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND
USE RIGHTS

19. BREWXE &)

MisE : ()

(c) REBEEWMER2011FE R
2012F12A31H 2 A f & -
RIBEAMMERE  REER
EHETHE  BBEALR
BEREHEMNHESRAFER
EEEERSRAMEBT ° %
HEREASEEEEE B
B AR EEGEMEBTGE
BEARART ([XZEw]) #
17 NEMIEHET AEHE A
EffE2egs  BEIHAH
EWEMEIE R EER 2 G
B -

(d) M20115E12A8318 © B 3t &
SEERZBITRERFAR
EEBEVERIARBEEHEY
68,585,000 JT (20124 :
) o

20. TiFAEEMSEERE

2012 2011
201245 20114
HK$'000

FAT

HK$°000
TR

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEAME SR -
Current assets REEE 397 366
Non-current assets IEREEE 19,751 19,918
20,148 20,284

The prepaid lease payments consisted of cost of land use
rights in respect of land located in the PRC held under
medium-term lease.

At 31 December 2011, the carrying value of the Group’s
prepaid lease payments on land use rights amounted to
approximately HK$1,457,000 (2012: nil) was pledged as
security for the banking facilities granted to the Group.
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21. GOODWILL 21. B8
The carrying amounts of goodwill at the end of the RGBS REDEEZ M) 4
reporting period allocated to Vital Pharmaceutical (Sichuan) BRIEBERNAR ([H)#ER]) X
Company Limited (“Sichuan Vital”) and P0)I|1EZ&E B AR A km)lfeERBgE#EFR AR ([0l
7] (“Sichuan Hengtai”) and its subsidiary (“Hengtai Group”) EBXR]) REWBAA ([BEXRE
are as follows: E]) cHEREmAENT
Sichuan Hengtai
Vital Group Total
)| 4R EREH et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
COST A
At 1 January 2011 R2011FE1 A1H 34,876 112,406 147,282
Derecognised on disposal of HE—REH B A AR
a subsidiary TR (34,876) - (34,876)
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 42011F K&2012F12H831H - 112,406 112,406
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January 2011 R20114F181H 34,876 60,051 94,927
Eliminated on disposal of & — I B A B R 88
a subsidiary (34,876) - (34,876)
Impairment loss recognised FRNEERBEESE
during the year - 52,355 52,355
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 42011F Kk2012512H831H - 112,406 112,406
CARRYING VALUES IRMEE
At 31 December 2012 A20125F12831H - - -
At 31 December 2011 M2011412 3318 - - -
Sichuan Vital 79 )| # 8.
On 30 December 2011, the Group disposed of its entire MR2011412830H » AEEHE
equity interest in Sichuan Vital, at a cash consideration HEAamIfR s 25ERs - ]
of HK$52,300,000 (note 32(d)). The goodwill which % R (& A52,300,0005% 7T (M 5%
arose from the acquisition of Sichuan Vital amounting to 32(d)) o WEEM )| R AT E A S
HK$34,876,000 was fully impaired in prior years. £34,876,0008 L E R A EFE

2EURME °
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21.

150

GOODWILL (continued)
Hengtai Group

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
management of the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of Hengtai Group with reference to the
valuation report of the Hengtai Group issued by Avista
and determined that goodwill was fully impaired by
approximately HK$52,355,000. The impairment of the cash
generating unit was mainly attributable to the expiry of
the food hygiene license (BmELEFTAIEE) for Osteoform
as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 4
August 2011. The expiry of the food hygiene license led to
cessation of production of Osteoform in the PRC.

The basis of calculating the recoverable amount and the
principal underlying assumptions were summarised as
below:

The recoverable amount of Hengtai Group was determined
on the basis of value-in-use calculations. That calculation
used cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management of the Group covering a
five-year period, and discount rate of approximately 19%.
Cash flow beyond the five-year period was extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate was based
on the relevant market growth forecasts and did not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflow or outflows
which included budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation was based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, as the expiry
of the food hygiene license resulted in cessation of
production of Osteoform in the PRC, the budgeted sales
for the value-in-use calculation prepared by the directors of
the Company significantly decreased as compared to prior
years. Management believed that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Hengtai Group to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of Hengtai Group.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

21.
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12A31B LS EBRRRE mE &
R RIS ENEILEEE B
ARAESRUBIEFECERE
BEZEEHERATEE NIER
K- BEREREFEENEBRREN
SRR EHISEHEREE
ZEHEREENEREE 27
W Bl SRIE 4258 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 435 Bf iR R M=

22,

23.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £ Z 2012612 318 L FE

22, BEHRYE

2012 2011
201245 20114
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
At 1 January M1A18 - 240,561
Exchange realignment G 5 R - 14,634
Additions nNE - 13,374
Derecognised on disposal of & — I B A B AR L RERR
a subsidiary (note 32 (b)) (Mf7E32(b)) - (268,569)
At 31 December M12A31H - -
Represented by: ETHEEZY
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights  + #fi{s fR# ~ Ja (T E 718 - 259,717
Construction costs and capitalised BEMRARER I
expenditure - 5,405
Finance costs capitalised BERMEBER AR = 3,447
Derecognised on disposal of HH S — FIFf B A R4 LEFERR
a subsidiary (note 32 (b)) (FF7E32(b)) - (268,569)
i3
INVENTORIES 23. #H
2012 2011
20124 20114F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Raw materials R 1,978 1,471
Work in progress el 62 -
Finished goods SBIRK i
—in transit — Bxge - 391,593
- on hand — F8E 9,151 15,099
Packing materials BEME 357 259
11,548 408,422

During the year, there was an increase in net realisable
value of finished goods due to change of distribution
channel and a decrease in cost to sell. As a result, a
reversal of write-down of finished goods of approximately
HK$1,154,000 (2011: nil) has been recognised and
included in cost of sales in the current year.

FAN- - HRDHEEENERHE
AR TBE - R an A A B3R5 E
EMLEA- Bt NEBERE
=] i Rk &L AK B 491,154,000 7T
(20114F : f8) RG22 A ABERK
KA °
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A 24, BH—EBRRNER
SHAREHOLDER

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Loan to China Uranium Development ERTHEhEER 775,174 -

The Group advanced a revolving loan to China Uranium VIS 2012611 4208 [
Development in the sum of USD100,000,000 on 20 FRBmEBERRE —ZEAH
November 2012. The loan was unsecured, carried interest 100,000,000 LHEIRE K © 7%
at one-month London Interbank Offered Rate plus 6% per BERAsEIE E—E A HRBR
annum (which is predetermined at 6.2075% per annum on TRIZEFREMEENF L (REX
the date of advancement) and repayable within 45 days HE 2 T8 E /& F £6.2075%) &F

after the advancement. On 4 January 2013, the loan was BN E R H %458 RE
fully settled. & ° N2013F1H4H - ZEHKE
i

EHEE -

i

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FBEWIRFA R HAitt B RRIR

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TAET

Trade and bills receivables (note a) FEWER R R BN EE (H5Ea) 255,303 55,612
Less: Impairment loss recognised in B YRR 2 EERRE
respect of trade receivables B8 (Kiztb)
(note b) (4,212) (4,165)
251,091 51,447
Prepayments, deposits and other TARIRIE ~ ATE REAMD
receivables (notes ¢ and d) FEW IR (M sEckd) 15,520 45,020
266,611 96,467
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. ZNCSE I R4 i v e =R um CIEeiY
dn o
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2012, included in trade and bills
receivables was amount of approximately HK$239,746,000
(2011: nil) due from an intermediate holding company,
hEK ¥ RE AR A A (CGNPC Uranium Resources
Co., Ltd.) (“CGNPC-URC”), the sole shareholder of China
Uranium Development.

The movements in impairment loss of trade receivables
were as follows:

25.

FE A2 B R I L it B WL R O

(&)
GEE

(a)

M2012%12A8318 + 3] A
FERERREREZERASE8LD
239,746,000/ JT (20114 :
) BERPEZERARSE
ZMEHRARAR ([FE
MEER] PRMERR
HIME—RR ) MR o

RN BRIBRE R IR R ST

2012
20124

HK$’000

At 1 January M1 A1H 4,165 7,800
Exchange realignment Ve 5, A 47 252
Recognised during the year FRER = 85
Written off s = (3,656)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HENE QR RS - (316)
At 31 December M12A31H8 4,212 4,165
At 31 December 2012, included in the impairment loss R2012F12A31H + JE W

of trade receivables were individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately
HK$4,212,000 (2011: HK$4,165,000) which were due to
long outstanding.

At 31 December 2012, included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables was interest receivable of
approximately HK$5,479,000 (2011: nil) from a shareholder,
China Uranium Development, in relation to the revolving
loan of USD100,000,000 (note 24).

AR 309 5 B /5 18 R B 4E {E B
BMENERERGTEHY
4,212,000% 7T (20114 :
4,165,000/ 7T) + fEHLRER
ARERHREE -

K20125128318 - 5l A
BNRE F1& Rk H &

WHEBEBANBEL —B AR
100,000,000% 7T M) fE IR B
XM FE UL — 5 % B P B i E
LR R B 495,479,000 7T
(20114F : /&) (M[5E24) -

The movements in impairment loss of prepayments, (d) TERFIE - 518 REMERGK
deposits and other receivables were as follows: B REBEZEHMT
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
At 1 January W1 A1H - 3,273
Exchange realignment Rk - 105
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HE BB A BB 8 - (3,378)
At 31 December ®W12A31H = -
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25.

154

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group’s credit terms for pharmaceutical and food
segment ranged from 90 days to 180 days while credit
term for natural uranium trading segment was an average
of 25 days.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and bills
receivables, based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates, and net of impairment loss

recognised:

25.

FE Wt BR Rk % H b FE UK FR B
(&)

AREEEPRRAED FNEEH
N FI0K 180K » MK AR Z
S EHHEERAITFY A25X -

RmERRAEER - L E g
REHEENERAMBEE
ER R E R R R 2 B R
AR EWRRIBERRE DT

2012 2011

20124 20114F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Within 30 days 30K A 246,427 25,795
31-60 days 31E60K 3,291 17,112
61-90 days 61290k 1,373 5,022
Over 90 days HBiEI0K - 3,518
251,091 51,447

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, all trade receivables
were neither past due nor impaired and related to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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26.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2012, unpledged bank balances
comprised of short-term bank deposits with original
maturity of three months or less of approximately
HK$530,457,000 (2011: HK$1,140,000,000) and bank
balance of approximately HK$73,981,000 (2011:
HK$122,764,000). Short-term bank deposits carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.80% to 1.18% (2011: ranging
from 1.85% to 2.45%) per annum and bank balances
carried interest at average market rate of 0.16% (2011:
0.42%) per annum.

Pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to
banks to secure short-term banking facilities granted to the
Group in respect of bills and letter of credit facilities and
were therefore classified as current assets. The deposits
carried fixed interest rate at 0.01% (2011: 0.01%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon
the settlement of bills and letter of credit facilities.

Bank balances and cash of the Group at 31 December
2012 included amounts of approximately HK$31,540,000
(2011: HK$83,348,000) denominated in RMB which is not
freely convertible to other currencies.

26.

RITEFRRE

P2012F12A31H » &K PR 1T
RERERTEEHRA=MEANAN
2 %2 B4R 17 17 3K £9530,457,000
# 7T (20114 : 1,140,000,000/%
J0) MERTT#E1F 473,981,000/ T
(20114F : 122,764,000/ 7T) ° 52
HRIRTT1F UL E E F 7 E N F0.80
[EZE1.18E (20114 : N F1.85)2
ZF2.45[E) 58 - MBTEFRT
B E0.16[E (20114 : 0.42
=D

BEARITAETEALASERE
BRERMRAEREHRITHE
BERTHRIT2HER Bitoa
ERBEE - FRIRETEFF X
0.01/Z (20114 : 0.01[E) & B °
ERBRITEIERENZER
ERMEERR -

X & B R2012F12H31H 2 iR
MEGERRASBRENIARBEE
2 3R IE #931,540,0007 7T (2011
4 183,348,000/ 7T) © :ZEHE
T™MSEBRARABEMER -
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. BNRAKHEMENSRIE

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Trade and bills payables FER RN R IEN R 199,068 393,390
Accrued expenses and other payables e S N ELth FE A~ 0B 20,998 31,5632

220,066 424,922

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills REHBEEER  BREHEH
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end HZ23| 2 ENERARENZEEZ
of the reporting period: RESITIT -

2012 2011
20125 20114

HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TAET

Within 30 days 30K 198,704 391,821
31-60 days 31E60X 46 372
61-90 days 61£E90K 13 4
Over 90 days BAEI0K 305 1,193

199,068 393,390

The average credit period on purchases of goods was HEERZFHEERS AKX
30 days (2011: 30 days). The Group had financial risk (20114 : 30K) - AEEHD E i
management policies in place to ensure that all payables HRREIRERE  UWEERAE
are settled within the credit time frame. EAMFENZEERZE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &

Number
Amount
o
HK$’000
FHET

of shares

RGO E

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each SREEC.OE T EBK

Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 M20115F1H1H

and 31 December 2012 201112 A318 &

201212 831H 50,000,000,000 500,000

Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
At 1 January 2011 R 201181 A1H 1,551,056,993 15,511
Issue of subscription shares (note a) BTRERGD (MiFa) 1,670,000,000 16,700
Exercise of share options (note b) TR (H5ED) 111,530,000 1,115

At 31 December 2011 and 2012 M20115E K% 20126128318 3,332,586,993 33,326

Notes: B EE -

(a) On 18 August 2011, the Company issued and allotted an (a) R201148A18H © &N A 7]
aggregate of 1,670,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 ?22 f%0.23% T 2 B % &
each by way of subscription at a price of HK$0.23 per REETREZESRE
share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$382,239,000 @O 01/’% T ERRA &
after deducting related expenses of approximately 1,670,000,0000% ° #0 K 48 78
HK$1,861,000 were used as additional working capital of 7 X 491,861,000/%8 7014 © AT
the Group. 15 7R I8 JF 38 #9382,239,00078

TREREEFEIINEEELS °

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2011, 111,530,000 (b) H Z=2011F12A31H I F

(2012: nil) new shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company €+ 111,530,000/% (2012

were issued at prices ranging from HK$0.23 to HK$0.51
(2012: nil) per share upon exercise of 111,530,000 share
options.

All new shares issued during the year ended 31 December

2011 rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in

issue.

&F &) AR R HEE.ONE T
R 1T 111,530,000 B
R AR IR ER N T &%0.23/8
JT £0.51% 7T (20124 : f&®)
17

HE2011F12A31B L FE T
ZERMFBEES A EED &7
HuBRmn=EaREES -
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29.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 18 August 2011, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “CB”) in principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 to China Uranium Development. The CB
was denominated in HK$. The CB entitled the holder to
convert the CB in full or in part (in an amount of HK$1,000
and integral multiples thereof) into the ordinary shares
of the Company at any time on or after the date of issue
of the CB up to seven days prior to the maturity date on
17 August 2016 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.23
per share, subject to adjustments. If the CB had not been
converted, it would be redeemed on 17 August 2016 at its

29.

R E S

AN QD B K20114E8H18E M
PREBERRETASER
600,000,000 7T 2 T B A] AR &
FH ([ ES]) - ATRRES
B TEE - IRRESFEE
ERERETTBRRKRES 2 BB
ZrEZFHAE (2016F8717
H) Bl B 2 o] B % o] ] iR
EHBENKBS (£5 51,0000
TRETEGE) RVLEHRE
BAR0.237 T (A] THE) BHRA

principal amount. RATEBBRED - iR E kR
A I & 75 0 R R20164F8 A

The CB contained two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element was presented in equity
heading “equity component of convertible bonds”. The
fair value of the liability component was calculated as
the present value of the stream of future cash flows. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 5.43%
per annum. The movement of the liability component of the
CB during the year is set out below:

17TEUNEARSZEER o

RRESHFBIEMSD  BER
BRI 5 o PR AER 5 B [ AT HR AR
EERABS] BT 2EEZAZ
Fle BERDARBEURKES
REZRENE 8BRS/ ZE
BRF K A5 F FE5.43% ° T&RH
FIFARRRESEBDS 28
ERE

HK$'000
TAT

Fair value at date of issue RETREBZ ARE 460,497
Transaction costs capitalised B R ZAR (2,231)
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HEF B (FFE10) 9,217
At 31 December 2011 2011612 A431H 467,483
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HEMNSFAZ (F:E10) 25,930
At 31 December 2012 A2012F12831H 493,413
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and
assets recognised and movements thereon during the

30. EEHIE

AT RRAFE RBEFEER
ZIBRERBABREEAR
current and prior year: BREEE -
Change in Change in
fair value of
properties
upon transfer

fair value
of land and

Accumulated buildings and

to investment
properties
S LEE
REMERZ
ARERT
HK$'000

tax investment
properties
THRET
URBREM=
RARERE
HK$'000

depreciation Tax losses

RIBENE
HK$'000

EH
HK$'000

REER
HK$'000

TET TET

TR TR

At 1 January 2011 R2011461A18 5,194 6,029 3,054 (122) 14,155
Charge to profit or loss 1% 332 (3,710) - (39) (3,417)
Exchange realignment  [& 5 782 278 367 192 - 837
At 31 December 2011 7A20114F12H31H 5,804 2,686 3,246 (161) 11,575
Charge to profit or loss  AE%H1% 284 1,429 - 161 1,874
Exchange realignment  [& 3 782 61 25 36 - 122
At 31 December 2012  A2012512A31H 6,149 4,140 3,282 - 13,571

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$76,778,000
(2011: HK$86,989,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset was recognised in
respect of approximately HK$976,000 at 31 December
2011 (2012: nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses of
approximately HK$76,778,000 (2011: HK$86,013,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. At 31
December 2012, approximately HK$76,778,000 (2011:
HK$50,919,000) included in the above unused tax losses
will expire after five years from the year of assessment to
which they relate to. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely. In connection with the tax inquires by IRD as
disclosed in note 11, certain tax losses brought forward
from prior years had been forfeited in the course of
settlement with the IRD.

RIREHELEER - AEEAT#
EIHAR R &M 2 ABARIEEIR
#) /76,778,000 T (20114F :
86,989,000/ JT) o M2011412
H318 B %t &% % #7976,000/% 7T
(2012%F : &) 2 EIBERIELER
HEE - R REETER R & F
R - B A B 4976,778,0007
7T (20114F : 86,013,000/ 7T) 2
MEEBEERRELEHREEE - ©
2012F12A318 » L it & &) A
i T8 & 18 & 476,778,000 T
(20114F : 50,919,000/ 7T) #H
HEMBBACIBRFERAFE
B e BB MR AR AR 8 -
BRMEF RN EER - &
FRAZENTEEBEED RER
AR EVE
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30.

31.

160

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$62,026,000 (2011: HK$91,110,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible differences
can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$3,279,000 (2011: HK$3,309,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 26 January 2002
(“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The 2002 Share Option
Scheme was replaced by a share option scheme adopted
by the shareholders on 23 July 2003 (“2003 Share Option
Scheme”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting held on 2 June 2010, a new share option
scheme (“2010 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
and the 2003 Share Option Scheme was terminated. Any
share options granted pursuant to the 2003 Share Option
Scheme prior to the termination will remain exercisable
before the expiration date. Details of which were set out in
the Company’s circular dated 27 April 2010.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

30.

31.

EERIE ()

RIERELEER - AEEBET
R B8 B 2= B 4962,026,0007% T
(20114 : 91,110,000/ 7T) » M
PR AT B 78 FE SR B0 I AT 4K 4
HA R ERE MU ER AR
MR EZREEREERBEE -

RIEEEMERE - B200851
B1B# - i B KB A R ATHRER
BFEIRZRSABZENH -
FH A AN 55 [ A 2 1) B o B B = 58
ZE BEREBBRIEEET AN
BERN A RS SR B - B AR A AR
EHBHRESFEMB AT R
i ) BT BE A B IRy = %8 3,279,0007%8
7T (20114F : 3,309,000/ 7T) fE
HIRIERY TH A o

B ERHE

A2 B 200241 26 8 F 4 —
B ERT 8] ([2002F BB A HEAT
2l]) - 2002F FE BT EIE B R
B R2003F7A23B I 2 ¥ 8
MRt El ([200345 BB AR AE =T 2 ])
A o

B R2010F6 A28 £ 17 2 &
REAFRg @B -IBETBERE
& N FE RN — IR TR AR
& ([2010F BE Ak s 71 &11) -
20034 R AR R &I B H AR UL -
20034 i AR #E 51 &1 4% L BT BR UL %
i 2 e B AR A (D AT PA B EA B AT
T BRAFERHN ARG AH
2010F4 B27H Z3BIK o
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The board of directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant option to the eligible participant including
any employees, any non-executive directors, directors,
suppliers, customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture
partners and any shareholders of any members of the
Group or any invested entities or any holders of any
securities issued by any members of the Group or any
invested entities. The maximum number of shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under its share option scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of its issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of passing the relevant resolution adopting the share option
scheme unless it is approved by shareholders in a general
meeting of the Company. The maximum number of shares
issuable under the options to each eligible participant
in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares in
issue unless it is approved by shareholder in a general
meeting of the Company. Any grant of options under the
share option scheme to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates must be approved by independent
non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options).
Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company or
to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of
the Company.

31.

BRAESE (2)

RARAREFEANEREEKS
HERLERE BEAEEAE
AR E AR RHIREEE ZF M
BE  -EHTTEE =% HE
eBP - BR - BRAEE
BHEEBRRIAEEFAEKER
AN EERABITESR 2R
BA e BEITERBEARR AR
T B AR R FTER AN E A
BN it BIFT X B AR R T AT B
B2 ARAIROEE &K
ZTRBBBRNARTREETR
A 230% ° 7& B 17 {F R #2010
FHEREFIRNEBEMEM
FERR M AT 81 FT IR I B AR T AT BE
BT 2RO BE - TSHBEMN
BRESE CBRRAERERB
HEIE BT M 210% » BRIERR
ERiAVINNEIED N~ 3= UR =z
e RIERARABRRARASER
Rt DAGRGEKRSEE
R E{RT 1216 A AR 95 B AR R A] & 5
TZROhBEEZR/REETRG
21% o RBEREFTEIR AR AF]
TMES TREZXETEZRR
IEEZACHBEATERLERER
BNBEBIENTES (T8
R ABIEAR A 2B IFH
TEE) 2 o W EM12(E
ABERARRZEEZRFIE
VEBNTEFIWERT B IHME
ATEEZBREBRD BITR
11 20.1% K # {8 #& 85,000,000
BT (BERGONEEBBAZK
MEFHE) « BIZERARRRER
SRR IHLE -
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31.

162

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At 31 December 2011, the number of shares of the
Company in respect of which options had remained
outstanding under the schemes was 860,000 (2012:
nil) representing 0.03% (2012: nil) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date.

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012,
no share options were granted or cancelled. No (2011:
111,5630,000) share options were exercised and 860,000
(2011: nil) share options were lapsed in current year.

First phase:

On 21 June 2002, options were granted to subscribe for an
aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.39 per share.
The closing price of the Company on the day immediately
preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.37 per share. Those
who were granted with the options can exercise their
rights in multiple periods starting from 16 August 2002 to 6
February 2012 as follows:

From 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 6,850,000 shares

From 1 January 2003 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,280,000 shares

From 1 January 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 6,510,000 shares

From 1 January 2005 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,360,000 shares

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

BRAESE (2)

R2011FE12A318 » BIETEIH
RITEZERERS R ZART
f&% 7% B A860,0000% (20124 :
/) HERARRNZABET
%19 .20.03% (20124 : f&) o

RELZE20114F %2012 12731H
HFEE BEFELDRTHEEM
BT MR - ANFE A EERE
(20114F : 111,530,0001%) # 77
{# 1 #£45860,00017 BE A% #E (2011
FE)BRR-

E—HAETE

2002566 A218 » A D A
A] R B 4 30,000,000 A& A 7]
Wtn 2 BERRAE - 1TF (B 1R20024F
T &G X EHE /B R0.39
BIL e ARRIRNREBEEIRER
HEHA—AZEmERER
0378 T - BEEREZ AL
20028 A16H # Z=20124F2
AeB F B A TR #HEITE
%5 2 R :

200258 A 16 HE2012E2H6H
— #76,850,000/%

20031 H1HZE201242H6H
— #78,280,000/%

20041 A1BE201252A6H
— #96,510,000/%

20051 H1HZE2012%2H6H
— #18,360,000%
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Second phase:

On 28 February 2003, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 19,800,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.24
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.21
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights from 1 March 2003 to any time before
expiry date on 6 February 2012.

Third phase:

On 29 September 2003, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.51
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.50
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights in two periods starting from 2 January
2004 to 6 February 2012 as follows:

From 2 January 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,990,000 shares

From 2 July 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 21,010,000 shares

31.

BIRETE (2)
LS

2003F2A28H » AR RIREHA
2 B A $£19,800,0000% A& 2 &) i%
M2 B - 1T ER2002F
IR EME X ET B B B R0.247%
T ARARMREEREZRD
HEIRT — B 2 W B & 5 %0.21
B BREREZALTAR
20033 A1H 2201242 A6H %
HAR (- HARRE R TR R S 2 A o

SE=HETE

M2003F9H29R » AR AHE H
A] 2 B 4 30,000,000 A& A 7]
Bt 2 B B kg - 17 {8 (B 1220034
R AR X ETE R ER0.51
BT ARARMREERRER
EHHAI—BZRmEAER
05087 - BRBElREZ AL
E20044%1 A28 # Z£2012%2 A
68 |F BRI A THIR S AT 1%
L 2R

2004%F1 A28 Z=2012%2 A6 H
— #98,990,0000%

20047 B2B Z=2012%2A6H
— #921,010,0004%
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31.

164

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Fourth phase:

On 12 September 2005, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 69,800,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.23
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.23
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1 January
2006 to 6 February 2012 as follows:

From 1 January 2006 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 34,900,000 shares

From 1 January 2007 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 34,900,000 shares

Fifth phase:

On 29 January 2008, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 67,500,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.28
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.28 per
share. Those who were granted the options can exercise
their rights in two periods starting from 1 October 2008 to 6
February 2012 as below:

From 1 October 2008 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 20,250,000 shares

From 1 January 2009 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 47,250,000 shares

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

BIRESTE (2)
B E

R2005F9F12H8 © AR AKH
A] 7R B8 A 69,800,000 A A A
B0 2 AR #E - 17 B &20034F
it Bl i X ET B R B R0.23
BT ARARDHREERER
LRSI —B2UmERETR
0238 L - BEEREZ AL
H2006F1H1H # £2012F2 A
68 IEEAEE A TR Bif o #L97
fEE R -

200651 H1HZE201242H6H
— #734,900,0008%

20071 A1RZE201262H6H
— #334,900,000%

SERMEE -

200841 F29H » ARATIREA]
2 B8 A& 67,500,000 & 2 7] I
D2 BBk RE - 1T (B %2003 i
AR AT &G X ET H £ §AR0.2878
Lo RARIRNREERERH
HHEIRT— B 2 Wi fE »EAR0.28%
TC o BRI 2 A+ A 52008
F10A18 #£ £2012F286H 1
BT IR D HEA TR ELAE R -

200810 A1 B &E2012%2F56H
— #720,250,0000%

20091 H1HZE201242H6H
— #147,250,0000%
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. BERESE @)
Movements of the share options during both years are set ERENMESE 2 EBHY W
out below: ™

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at1  Exercised at 31 Lapsed at 31

January during December during December Exercise price

Date of grant 2011 the year 2011 the year 2012 per share
R2011% 20115 R2012%

1A1H 12A31A 124318 BR
RitiAH HRITHE HRTE FREX HRATHE TEE
HKS

Ex-directors: HiTES:
Mr. Xu Xiaofan' BN 12 September 2005 15,000,000  (15,000,000) - - - 0.23
2005F9312A
M. Liu James Jin' s 29 January 2008 8500000 (8,500,000) . . , 028
200851 A29H
Ms. Guo Lin' i el 29 September 2003 3,000,000  (3,000,000) - - - 0.51
2003F9A29H
29 January 2008 8,500,000  (8,500,000) - - - 0.28
20081 329A
Mr. Tao Lung? ML 12 September 2005 15,000,000 (15,000,000) - - - 023
2005595128
Mr. Huang Jianming? ERELE 29 January 2008 8,500,000  (8,500,000) - - - 0.28
2008%F1A29H
M. Shen Songging? SEEE?  29January2008 8500000  (8500,000) - - - 028
20081 329A
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa' RRERE 29 January 2008 1,500,000 (1,500,000) - - - 0.28
200851 A29H
Employees &8 21 June 2002 330000  (230000) 100,000  (100,000) - 039
2002F6A21H
29 September 2003 10,260,000  (9,500,000) 760,000 (760,000) - 0.51
2003F9329A
12 September 2005 2,800,000  (2,800,000) - - - 0.23
2005595128
29 January 2008 19,000,000  (19,000,000) - - - 0.28
2008%F1 A29H
Other eligible Participants  £4AZHKAEE 20 September 2003 500000 (500,000) - - - 051
2003F9H29H
29 January 2008 11,000,000  (11,000,000) - - - 0.28
200851 A29H
112,390,000 (111,530,000) 860,000 (860,000) -
Exercisable atthe end of W& HWHEER
the reporting period AT 112,390,000 860,000 -
Weighted average METAITEE
exercise price HK$0.29 HK$0.29 HK$0.50 HK$0.50 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 —Z——44% 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 435 Bf iR R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

31.

32.

166

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

1

The directors resigned with effect from 18 August 2011.

The directors resigned with effect from 11 November 2009.
The share options held by the resigned directors remained
effective and exercisable until 6 February 2012.

In respect of share options exercised during the year

ended 31 December 2011, the weighted average share
price at the dates of exercise is HK$1.34 (2012: nil).

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 15 April 2011, the Group entered into sale
agreements to dispose of its 100% equity interest in
a total of nine inactive subsidiaries, to independent
third parties for total consideration of approximately
HK$206. Those disposed subsidiaries include
Vital Biotech (Hong Kong) Limited, Medhealth
International Limited, Ever Power Holdings Inc.,
Gainful Plan Limited, Beshabar Trading Limited
(BVI), Maxsun International Limited, Farthinghoe
Enterprise Limited, AMT Labs (Australia) Pty Limited
and Vitapharm Research Pty Limited. The disposal
was completed on 15 April 2011.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

32.

B

ESHE (&)

ZEEECHEMT BH20114F8
BA18H#EAER
ZEEZEBE BT B2009F
11TBITHEER . BEITE
EMFEREEEER LA T
1718 HE201252A6H A&
ﬂ:o

HE2011F12A31 B IEFANTTE
ZERENTHEESZ METY

HE

(a)

B4 TT (20124 « 48) ©
B &8 2 R
MA2011F4 A158 » KREEH

RV EmSE RE
FEZTHEHENEL
BEXBZWHEBRAAIZZ
BERAER BRED
/2068 Lo % F B W
EMBEBAABERRE
mEB) BER QA
Medhealth International
Limited » Ever Power
Holdings Inc. * Gainful
Plan Limited * Beshabar
Trading Limited (BVI) »
XHFBEERARZA
Farthinghoe Enterprise
Limited + AMT Labs
(Australia) Pty Limited}
Vitapharm Research Pty
Limited e & H & 21K
20115F4 F15B EK °
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

The net assets of those disposed subsidiaries at
their respective dates of disposal were as follows:

32. HEMBLATR (@)

(a) (&)
ZECHENBARRE
SALERBZEESE
W

HK$'000
THETT

Bank balances and cash W RIRITER 2
Cumulative exchange translation reserve HEMRBATERZ

released on disposal of subsidiaries RETE L (1,627)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z M 1,625
Total cash consideration BIRSRE -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEE RS RAFE
Cash consideration received FTUEUR &R (E -
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of W T ERITESRER S (2)

(2)

On 29 July 2011, PR EZER AR (‘KHE (b) F2011%F7H29H © & A

%), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which K#ZE% agreed to
dispose of and the acquirer agreed to acquire the
entire equity interest of and the shareholder’s loan
owing by FERIHREMEREBR AR (V&
T BB #b E”) at an aggregate cash consideration
of RMB230,609,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$281,230,000). The disposal was completed on

16 September 2011.

Bl 2 EWEB DR EBH
BEEERAA ([KEE
) EBIF =AW
EB KBEXRE
i 65 T U BB 5 R B U R
HREIHBREWERER
RAR (GREIEME]) 2
AR AR o5 I B AT AR
REH BREAAREK
230,609,0007T (#J#H & 1
281,230,000/ JT) ° #% H
€ = 18 »201149F16H
FERK, ©
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. HEMBLQE &)
(b)  (Continued) (b) (%)
The net assets of )& LFEHIE at the date of disposal BIEMERTERR
were as follows: BEFENAT
HK$'000
FAT
Property under development BRPYIFE 268,569
Amount due to holding company FERHE IR R B R (258,114)
Net assets disposed of FIHEEEFE 10,455
Cumulative exchange translation reserve HE—RRBEARERZ
released on disposal of a subsidiary ZEE L (533)
Disposal of the total indebtedness RHEBBREERIEEZ
owned by J&)IFEHZE to the Group at BEETAEER
the date of disposal 258,114
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A R 2 W 13,194
Total cash consideration IR RIE 281,230
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZRESRAFE
Cash consideration received FTUCERER 2 R (B 281,230
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

(c) On 25 July 2011, Sichuan Vital entered into an (c)
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant

32. HEMBLATR (@)

R2011467 /258 © 1 JI|
MR =SR] M
BB WINEREE
o6 T U B 5 R B O
B(KE) HEFR QA
([HERKHRE]) 225
Az ReRERA
R #1,500,0007T (9 E
71,829,000/ JT) ° 7% H
& = 7 N20114F9AH21R
TERX, o

to which Sichuan Vital agreed to dispose of and
the acquirer agreed to acquire the entire equity
interest of #R(KERREEERAE) (“HERNKEPRIZE)
at cash consideration of RMB1,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,829,000). The disposal was
completed on 21 September 2011.

M B P EP R BE 5 E B R
The net assets of # 2B X 8 & %% at the date of ZEEFBENT

disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
TAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KR 455
Other receivables HAbFEUGRIR 182
Bank balance and cash RITHEFRIRE 314
Other payables Hih e FKIE (620)
Net assets disposed of it EEEFE 331
Cumulative exchange translation reserve HE—FWBARERZ
released on disposal of a subsidiary RETHE A (1,218)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — I B A R 2 W 2,716
Total cash consideration BIRSNRE 1,829
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEE RS RATFE
Cash consideration received B & (B 1,829
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of B THERITESREIRS (314)
1,515
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

170

(d)

On 16 August 2011, Yugofoil Holdings Limited
("Yugofoil”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which Yugofoil
agreed to dispose of and the acquirer agreed to
acquire the entire equity of Sichuan Vital at cash
consideration of HK$51,000,000. Further on 20
September 2011, Yugofoil and the acquirer entered
into a supplemental agreement for an additional
cash consideration of HK$1,300,000. The disposal
was completed on 30 December 2011.

32. HEMBLTR (@)

(d)

The net assets of Sichuan Vital at the date of

disposal were as follows:

7201188168 » &AA A
Z2EENBRARK SR
RERAR ([HREA]) &=
BAYE=FEMLBE - &
I MeREELE -
WEFREWED) &R
2EERAET BeR
8 451,000,000/ 7T > 3
4N F201149H208 @ #4
= TR R U BE 5 BT 3L — 10 7
Ttk BENRERER
1,300,000/ 7 - HEEIE
BEr2011912 308 58K °

mERRNEERBZE
EFEMT

HK$'000
TAT

Intangible assets B AE -
Property, plant and equipment Y%~ BB KRB 34,585
Prepaid lease payment TEHAERIE 14,166
Deposit for acquisition of property, WHEMZ ~ R &
plant and equipment REZ S 1,951
Inventories FE 7,791
Trade and other receivables JFEE LA B 350 % JEL At P L R TE 10,562
Bank balances and cash RITHEGERRE 2,590
Other payables H b RSB (14,138)
Net assets disposed of it EEEFE 57,607
Cumulative exchange translation reserve HE—HWBARERZ
released on disposal of a subsidiary RETE L (18,271)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNEQ R W 13,064
Total cash consideration RIS HRE 52,300
Satisfied by: PRNIIESERI N
Cash received BWEGR S 16,500
Other receivable (note) H A dsria (MisE) 35,800
52,300
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEE RS MAFE
Cash consideration received FrigER & R ME 16,500
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B TR ERITESRERS (2,590)
13,910
Note: The remaining cash consideration of HK$35,800,000 Mz © H 8 3R € X {835,800,0007%
was settled during the year ended 31 December 2012. fnr\ﬁf‘ F2012912A318 1
FE
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the
year:

33. FHEALRS

(a)

Sales of natural uranium to M EZmETE
CGNPC-URC SHER A

Loan interest income received from LB A B e 3 2 R Y
China Uranium Development BERA WA

RN AR A M RERAE
i T WEEI  AEE
FAEBMEALERL
ATHEARS :

2012 2011
20125

20114
HK$'000
T

HK$’000
FERT

1,167,493 -

5,479 -

As mentioned in notes 8 and 11, the Group reached
a settlement agreement with the IRD on the amounts
of Hong Kong Profits Tax relating to the years of
assessment 2000/01 to 2011/12 for a total sum
of approximately HK$26,357,000 together with
interest and penalty of approximately HK$6,376,000.
Amount incurred before 2002 had been indemnified
by the then controlling shareholders of the Company
as in accordance with the deed of indemnity dated
30 January 2002. In December 2012, the Company
entered into a settlement deed with Mr Tao Lung, a
beneficial owner of Perfect Develop Holding Inc.,
the then controlling shareholder, whereby Mr Tao
Lung, acting on behalf of the indemnifiers, agreed
to settle the tax liability incurred before 2002 of
approximately HK$2,960,000. During the year ended
31 December 2012, the amount was fully settled.

(b)

M TE8 Kk B FE11HR AR
e AREE BB
2000/01E2011/12:% ®
FRZBEBNEHAELD
26,357,000/ 7T # [A I
B K &1 3 #6,376,0007%8
TCEK MR o REBR
200241 A30H 5] 32 2 T
BRFEZIE - PR20024F A
EXNRBEESERME
RIRRBERBEIM-
M2012F 128 + A A
Perfect Develop Holding
Inc. (ERAZERRE) &
Bma AL LR
MpREE - Bt - MBEL
EREBMEATE BE
S A R 20024F B E £ KB
1B & 1T 492,960,000 7T °
HZE2012%12A31H [t4F
B ZENBECEHEX
if o
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management during the year
was as follows:

33. BEEALIRS &)

(c) FEEBAESZHME

FARRBEFREME
ZEBABZHEWT

2012 2011
20125 20114F

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Short-term benefits 52 HAtE A 4,187 4,414
Termination benefits R EFE = 10,500
Post-employment benefits BB 212 A 19 58
4,206 14,972
The remuneration of directors of the Company and RAAREERFETHA

key executives was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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34. COMMITMENTS 34. EiE
Commitments under operating leases REEEARE
The Group as lessor KEEERLTAA
Property rental income earned during the year was FARDM2YWERS WAL R
approximately HK$6,958,000 (2011: HK$5,483,000). The 6,958,000/ 7T (20114F : 5,483,000
investment properties were expected to generate rental BL) REVERHAFSEE
yields of 8.33% (2011: 7.14%) on an ongoing basis. The 4 7 & Uk %8.33% (20114F :
investment properties held had committed tenants for the 7.14%) c FRE R EME A&
next one to five years. Fr—=rRF2HF -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEHBEER  A&EEEH
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum TP R T 51 e BR 21 B 2 R 2R &
lease payments: BEENKETLEL

2012 2011
20125 20114F

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Within one year —&FR 6,287 6,511
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEZERFE

(BEEEWF) 5,581 6,271

11,868 12,782
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34.

35.

174

COMMITMENTS (Continued) 34.

Commitments under operating leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

The Group leased certain of its offices and staff quarters
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
were negotiated for a term ranging from one to three years
and rentals were fixed throughout the rental period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

AIE ()

CRAERE ()
KEFEBERNA
AEBERBECLRERHARAE
FRAZRETES - AAYE
CHEHMEEHMNT—EF=
€ MASEREPNERTE -

RBEHRREER  AEBERE
AR E T EAGER T IR
REIH 2 R SRIEHEENK

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
Land and buildings T RIEF
Within one year —FR 6,707 544
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEERF
(BRERERMEF) 7218 590
13,925 1,134
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EEKH

At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the
Group were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to

the Group as follows:

RBEEHMREER  AEEDH
FERRITREERETEE -
HEWMT

2012 2011

20124 20114

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx F&T

Property, plant and equipment W - R MR = 1,656
Investment properties WEME = 68,585
Bank balances and cash WITHEERRE 644 678
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights {3 FAETE (70 & X8 - 1,457
644 72,376
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AR IR R

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  36.

THE COMPANY

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Non-current assets IEREEE
Plant and equipment B B & 2,218 705
Investments in subsidiaries MEARRE (a) 277,929 277,929
280,147 278,634
Current assets MEVEE
Inventories 78 - 391,593
Loan receivables EWE R 775,174 -
Trade and other receivables JRE U B N EL At e Uk
=] 249,033 4,582
Bank balances and cash RITEFNRE 533,281 1,144,788
1,557,488 1,540,963
Total assets BERE 1,837635 1,819,597
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables T BRFA N E M e
RIH 202,140 393,750
Amounts due to a subsidiary FERTI B A T FIE (b) - 148,500
Income tax payable FES 1SR 22,660 -
224,800 542 250
Net current assets mENEEFE 1,332,688 998,713
Total assets less current liabilities BEMRERRSER 1,612,835 1,277,347
Capital and reserves AR K
Share capital i 33,326 33,326
Reserves 1 (c) 1,085,943 776,538
Total equity G ey G 1,119,269 809,864
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE
Convertible bonds Al AR ESH 493,413 467,483
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBAE 153 -
493,566 467,483
1,612,835 1,277,347
Notes: BEE
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2011, investments (a) RE Z2011F12A831H L F
in subsidiaries have been increased by approximately BB ARREERERNL
HK$224,894,000 by capitalising the same amount of JE WP B 2 R IE 2 AR 2 FE
amounts due from subsidiaries. 1 H1#49224,894,000/8 TC °
(b) Amounts due to a subsidiary (b) AN EENGIE ]

BEFAREER RS RA

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and AR
FERSRIEE

repayable on demand.
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. ARQBEBMRRE &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Mizk : (&)

(c) Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: (c) FRRBHEEZHOT -

Equity

Share  component
Share options of convertible Other Retained
premium reserve bonds reserve earnings

TRERGES
RORE BRERR re:iy Hfthftte REEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT B THL AT TAT

At 1 January 2011 RH2011E1718 304,207 9,891 - - (24,588) 289,545
Exercise of share options TTIEEB A2 41,225 (9,737) - - - 31,488
Recognition of equity BRIRRES

component of convertible HRASH

bonds - - 139,503 - - 139,503
Issue of shares BT 367,400 - - - - 367,400
Transaction costs attrioutable 77 RR{AE(L

to issue of shares THHAR (1,861) - - - - (1,861)
Transaction costs attributable /7 A[ k&S

to issue of convertible bonds  fE{E 3 S - - (676) - - (676)
Loss for the year ENEE - - - - (48,861) (48,861)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A31H 710,971 154 138,827 - (73,414) 776,538
Profit for the year FRET - - - - 309,417 309,417
Loss arising from translation ~ [E &S 7 EE - - - (12) - (12)
At 31 December 2012 201212 A31H 710,971 154 138,827 (12) 236,003 1,085,943
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37. FEHBAT

ARATR2012K% 201112 A31H
BEZETEMBARGEBAT

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company
as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of shares incorporation/  Place of share capital/paid Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary held establishment  operations  up registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
AL,/ BRITRE/
WEARER HERGERN  RIZH E3 0k AREMBARE REEELRE TERH
2012 2011
20128 20115
Direct subsidiaries:
ERNEAR
Yugofoll Ordinary shares ~ BVI Hong Kong 50,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
S TRk AERNES A of US$1 each RER
50,0008 & &%
BREGIET
Sino Lion Capital Inc. Ordinary shares ~ BVI HongKong 1 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
EER ABRAEE  FE of US$1 each REAR
1REER
BREEIET
Ever Jump Limited Ordinary shares ~ BVI HongKong 1 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
LER LERIEE AR of US$1 each RERR
TR R
BREEIFET
Indirect subsidiaries:
MEHEAR :
Beshabar (Macao Commercial Ordinary shares  Macau Macau 1 quota (share) of 100% 100%  Inactive
Offshore) Limited LEk B B MOP100,000 each EfEd
DE (2F9ER ERE ()
EERE) BRAA BHERI%E 100,0002F9 T
Beshabar Trading Limited Ordinary shares  Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Inactive
Liak X 3 of HK$1 each RS S
100 E B
BREEET
RERRYEERAT) Contributed PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 95.7% 95.7%  Manufacturing
capital el A AR30,000,00070 and trading of
NV pharmaceutical
products
HEREEER
Wide Triumph Limited Ordinary shares  Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Management
WBBRRAA LaEk A Bk of HK$1 each services
100/ &8 BB
BREEET
Vital Pharmaceuticals Ordinary shares  Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Inactive
Company Limited LAk Bl Eh of HK$1 each LR
RRZZERNA 100 E B
SRmEETET

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 —Z——4&4%®% 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 435 Bf iR R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2012 £, Z2012F 128318 I FE

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

178

Name of subsidiary

HEAFZH

Indirect subsidiaries
(Continued):
BENEAR (£) -

mIE% (Mid)

FREEE (note d)
(MfEd)

‘M REEERLA
(mIEE)
(notes ¢ and d)

(FitzEckd)

Class of shares
held

FERGER

Contributed
capital
NV

Contributed
capital

BAER

Contributed
capital

BARK

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
AL,/

L2 8

PRC
HE

PRC

TE

PRC
HE

Place of

operations

£33

PRC
HE

PRC

TE

PRC
PE

37. EEWBAT (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital/paid
up registered capital
BRITRE/
HREMBRARE

Attributable equity
interest of the Group

FEEEGRE
2012 2011
20126 2011%

RMBA4,300,000 100% 100%
AR4,300,0007T

RMB18,000,000 100% 100%
AR 118,000,000

RMB229,541,874 100% 100%
AR1229,541,8747

Principal activities

EX3

Selling and
distributing of
pharmaceutical
products

HERDHER

Property development
and management

MERRRER

Pharmaceutical
research
and development
and investment
management
BUMERRAER

# Wholly-owned foreign enterprise

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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37

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period or at any
time during the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, in accordance
with relevant shareholder meeting resolution, spin-off
agreements and regulations of modified articles of
association, the then wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Sichuan Vital, was divided into the new Sichuan
Vital and PO)I|'E %. Registered and paid up capital of the
new Sichuan Vital was reduced from USD36,800,000 to
RMB65,000,000 and the registered capital of 0)1| E % was
RMB229,542,000. After the completion of spin-off, PUJI|&
% was wholly-owned by Yugofoil. During the year ended
31 December 2011, the entire interest of Sichuan Vital was
disposed of.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Ak #f & %
and Sichuan Hengtai obtained the approval of change
in shareholding from Sichuan Vital to PUJIIE % in relation
to the spin-off of Sichuan Vital during the year ended 31
December 2011.

37.

FTENMELT (&)

fi g -

(a)

ERFAFIAREE KBRS
B RARREENERLR
R REBREBREEEEN
BENMBRF -

BEME A RN ARHRS REHE
B s AR & B E AT ) A
R BEITEREENEEE

WNE E2011412A318 1L
B REBEBABERIENSRZ
= DFthE REET Ak E
FRABRNZRE - ARE—HE
BHN2EWBARN) SRS
DA gREm)|E
¥ o M 4R M EEA
& 7K 136,800,000 7T H &
A B #65,000,0007T © T M
NEEZEMERBABARE
229,542,0007C * N IF LT HE 7=
K% MIBEXABEREE
WA - NE 22011412831
AIEEE - W) @R s 2R
HOHE -

HZE2012F12A31HILEE -
AERE % &P )IESRE UL
B R E £20114F12A318 1E
FEHHE)| 4R EERRE
R gRESm)||BE R
EB) 2R o
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

Location

Office Unit Nos. 15-16

on 1st Floor to 3rd Floor and
Office Unit Nos. 1-12

on 4th Floor of an office building
known as “FEHZ B = AL,

No. 318 Tianfuda Road North Section,
within Gaoxin District Technology
Incubate Park
(EFEBEFEER),

Chengdu City,

Sichuan Province, the PRC

No. 3, Keyuan South Road,

High-Tech Industrial Development Zone,

Chengdu City,
Sichuan Province,
the PRC

RIERE M

NE Type of properties Lease term

VIR

H Office premises
pliE= WAE
FXEB T

RETER I EE R
RIFAEILRI3185%

B TR E L]
ZWAEKXIE

118 E318 2 15-165%

PWAZEN A aE

12129

/NN v

=8 Office premises
IS WAE

B &R

SE

RHE A B 357
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HEHR

Medium-term lease

hHIEE

Medium-term lease

THHEE
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